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Archant at a glance

ARCHANT AT A GLANCE
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Strategic report

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Directors present their Strategic report for the year ended
31 December 2018

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The parent companys {"tne Company ™) prinapal actvity s that of a holding company for the
Archant group of companies i “the Group”

The Group's prncpal acthity during the year continued to be primanly UK based and
compnse a single trace of publishing content, predominantly in print, online, through mobile
technclogies, live events and pr nting.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The business contirues 1o operate in an increasngly fragmented media landscape; 1fs localness
and understanding of its audiences and customers, together with its trusted reiationship with
these groups, remains ane of its key strengths.

The key financa and non-firanaal performance indicaters for the Group are focused on
driving a~d monitonng the transion of leveragng iocal and ragional audiences wa online
medcha in nght of the cortnuing decline in prnt:

Regorted L ke-for-lwe

2018 2057 2018 2017
Total reven.e £87.3m £96.0m £87.2m £95 =m
Advertisng a7 d otrer rzvenue i dgital £64.2m £72 0m £64.2m £79.9
Crcuaton revenua £23.1m f24 6 £23.0m f24.6m
Stbscnpt ons Ve of magazine copy sa es: 57.2% 55 59 57.2% 55 5%
Digial reverue - classied £2.0m £2 3m £2.0m £2 3
Digirar reverue - other £7.3m £59m £7.3m £5.9m
Coerat pg costy® £84.6m £92 5 £84.5m £90 8m
Cperatng orofn> £2.7m £4. Im £2.7m f4.7m
Net cask £2.9m £8.7m £2.9m £2 7m
Web and mooile traft e MUVs) 8.5m 37 8.5m a.7m
Pate views 34.4m 33 8m 34.4m 33 8m

~exctuding ftems notincluded n wnderlying oserating profit

On a hke-for-like basis, the reduction ir ongoing revenues 15 8 6% reflecting the chalienging
environment within the industry. Advertising and other revenue feli by 10.8% on a like-for-like
basis. Mewspaner circdlation revenue feit 5.6% 1o £10.4m, and magazine crculation revenus
fell 4.49% 1o £6 6m.

Zevenue from like-for-lke digital activities has grown oy 13.2% (0 £9.3m Thus s underpinned
by growth in the key drivers of digital presence — audience Monthly un.que visitors 1o our
fixed and mabile sites an 2 bke-for-ike basis fell from 8 7m in 2017 to 8 5m but average
maorthly Archant fixed and maobis site page views ncoreased from 33 8m to 34.4m When
the legacy classified business is excluded the Tke-for-like growtn is 23 2%, mamly driven by
revenaie from content distiay

4 www.archant.co.uk
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Strategic report

STRATEGIC REPORT continued

The derectors contiale
were raduced oy BE7:

v paper costs * ing oy /1% compared b

Ocerat:rag S

1 by 8 7% and

en
9]

the [rGr year

Operatng oot before arnorisation, imparment ard exceplioral fems requced by 32 8% w
£2 7 as revendes fell more thar cost savings

Tae Group manta os sufficie~t debt neadroom to ensure 17 can meet all 1ts cash lisbiitizs The
Group's banking faciliies were renegvwed durng the year and are n place unut June 2622

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS
Tre directors are not aware, &t the date of thes “eport, of any hkely rmaior changes in the
Groups actraly in tre next year

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There is ar orgeoing orecess for the identf cabion, evauaticn and ma-agement of the
sigmif:cant nisks facea by the Grous. The management and mitigat-on of any adverse -mpact
o the key rsks dentified are.

fnance msk, ard in particalar hquiaty nsk 15 managed by the Groun thraugh committad
short-term and long-term finance fac ties at a level to meet the Group’s anticipated “unding
requirerrents These finance fac tties require certarn finanaial covenants to be met incuding
orofit and cash.

Mar<et risk, driven by lifestye and attitude 10 sperd or meadia 1s managed via the Group
aiming 1o provide high aualiry editorial content in all its products to provide aporopriate cuahty
and valle for its audience to encourage repeat purchases Investment is cont:nui~g N digita:
brands, and in strengthening the Grous's “ixed web and maobile presence. The Group reviews
econumg, industry and other relevant cata to evaluate future revenue trerds and to put
appropriate pans i place.

The Group continues 1o be exposed to regulatory changes, investment rmarket f uciuations
or changes i other core assumptions via 1ts defined benefis pension scheme cefidt. This
5 careully monitored and there are regular reviews with the Trustee of the schemne The
Group anc Trustee have taken appropnate act ons to mit gate the growth in pensicn habilities
ncluding closing the scheme 1o future accrual and managing the investmen:t stralegy 1o
increase hedemg on discount rates and infiation.

The Group 1s dependent on technology 1n particalar computer networks and software To
mitigate this business continuity pians are revewed annuaily, The Group has Tl mirroring of
Coe systerms across two sites and Lses clowd pased services where approonata. The Group
aiso mamtams adecuate Busmess interrupiion insurance cover in the event of finanaal loss as
a result of farures in key systems.

By order of the Board,

BG McCarthy
Director

27 Fenruary 2019

www.archant.co.uk 5
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Directors' report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors present their report for the year ended 31 December 2018

DIRECTORS

The fo'lowing directers asld office dur ng the
year:

5 T Bax

5 C Copeman

JL Herry

Ay Hastings

B G McCarthy

DR HIl

M J Walsh

DIVIDENDS

The directors do not propose a final drvdend
in respect of 2013 12017 Mill. Ne «terim
divderd was paid duning the year (2017 Nib,

GOING CONCERN

The Groaps busness activiues, together
with the factors ikely o affect its future
developrment are dezcnped i the Strategic

report on nages 4t 3.

The Archant Groug Nas considerable firanaal
resources and faclities available, togather
with secure 'ong term contracts wit prinGpa
suppl ers. The Archant Group's budget ng and
farecasting processes snclude the preparation
of forecast cash flows, based on expected
tradirg results, the Archant Group's overall
waorking capital regquirements and  other
non trading cash items, inciuding capita.
exoenditure, nteresy, debt and itaxation
These forecasts indicate that the Archant
Group has an adequate fevel of fachities o
meet 115 {orecast cash requirements, and as
a conrsequence the directors believe that the
Group s well placed to manage its business
nsks successfully despiie the current unceriaip
gconomic cutlook

Afrer making enguines, the directors have a
reasonable expectation that tne Comgany
and the Group has adequae resources to
continue 0 eperational exstence for the
foreseeable future Accordingy the directors

have contiaued o adopt the going concern
basis ;n preparing the accompanying financal

staiemants

DIRECTORS' LIABILITIES

The Compary 1ds granted an indemnity w0
cne or more of 1ts direczors against habinty
in respect of sroceedngs brought by third
parties, subject to the conditiors set out in
section 234 of the Companies Act 2006 Such
qualifying third party incemnity provision
remains v force as at the date of approving
the Directars’ report.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
STATEMENT

The directors are responsibie for prepanng
the Strategic report, Direciors’ renort and
the finanaal statements 'n accordance wsth
aophcatfe faw and reguiations.

Company law reguires the drectors 1o
prepare iinancal statements tor sach tinandial
year. Under the the drectors have
elected to prepare the francial statements
oaccordance with Internatonal Firan<al
Reporting Standards (IFRSs). Under company
lavw the directors must not approve the
fnancial statements unless trey are satsfed
that they give a true and fair views of the state
of affairs of the Group and the Company and
cf tve profit or loss of the Group for that
period,

1AW

In prepanng those financal statements -he
directors are reduired to

e select suitaole accounting oolicies and
ther apoly them consistently:

« make jugdgements ardl estimates that are
reasorable and prudent, and

+ state applicable
standards have been followed, subject
1o any material departures disclosed and
explamee in the financal statements

whether accounting

www.archant.co.uk
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Directors’ report

DIRECTORS’ REPORT continued

The directors are resoonsiple for keeprg
croper accountng records (at are sufficient
toshow andexplainthe Groupand Corpary s
tranzactons gnd disclose it reasornabie
accuracy at any tre the firancal positon of
the Groun and Company ang enablz them 1o
ensure that the financal staterents comply
weiih the Comparies Act 2006 They are also
resporsicle for safequarding the asseis of “he
Group and Company and hence for tak ng
reasonabie stens for the prevenrnon and
detection of fraud and otner irregularities.

DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO
AUDITORS

The directors who were members of the
board at the tme of approvng this report
are sted o~ page & Having made enquines
of fellow diractors and of the Company's
aurditors, each of tnase directors confirm that:

s to the best of their knowledge and belef,
there 15 no information relevant to the
preparation of this regort of which the
Company's auditors are unaware, and

* they have taken all the steps a director
rright reascnaply be expected o have
taken 10 bg aware of relevart audit
information and to estabhsh that the
Companys auditors are aware of that
information.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2019 Annual General Meeting will be
neld at 11.00 a.m. on 2 May 2019 at Prospect
House, Rouen Read, Norvs ch MR1T 1RE

By order of the Board,
B G McCarthy

Director

27 fFebruary 2019

www.archant.co.uk
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Auditor's report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARCHANT LIMITED

(Company number 4126997)

OPINION

We have audited the financial statements
of Archant Limited the Parent Company’
and 1ts subsidiaries 1the "Group' for the year
ended 31 December 2018 whih comprise
the Consolidated ncome the
Consolidated statement of comorehensive
mncome, the Grouo and Parent Company
statement of financal positon, the Grouwp
and Parent Campany statement of changes in
equity, the Consoidated Ceash flows and the
related ~otes 1 to 32, mcluding a summary of
significant accounting policies The financa
reporting framewaork that has been appied
in therr preparatio~ s applicabie law and
Internatiornal Financial Reporting Standards
{FRSs) &5 adopted oy the Eurcpean Unior
and, as regards the Parant Company financia.
statements, as apples mn accordance with the
nrovisions of the Companies Act 2006

statement,

In our opirion

s the financal staiements give a true and

fair view of the Group’s and of the Parent
Companys affairs as at 31 December
2018 and of the Group’s ioss for the year
then ended;

e the Group financal statements have been
properly prepared 10 accordance  with
IFRSs as adopted by the European Unon;

s the Parent Company financal statements
have been properly prepared v accordance
with 1FRSs as adopted oy the turopear
Unior in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006; ard

¢ the financal statements been
prepared i accordance the

requirements of the Companies Act 2606,

have
with

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit 1in accardance with
International Stardards on Auditing (UK (ISAs
(UK and applicable law Our responsibilities
under those siandards are further described
in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report
below. We are independent of the Group

anc Parert Company -0 accordance wvith the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our
augis of the financial statements in the UK,
ncluding the FRC's Ethical Standarg, and we
have fultilled our other ethucas responsibilities
tn accordance with these reguirements.

We beheve that the audit evidence we have
chtained s sufficient and appropriate 1o
provide a basis for our opinion.

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING
CONCERN

We have rothing to report in respect of the
following matrers n relation to which the
ISAs (UK require Us [0 report 1o you where:

¢ the directors” use ¢f the going concern
hasis of accounting in the prenaration of
the financa’ staterments 1s not approprate;
or

s the directors have -0t disciosed in the
financial staternents any iIdentled material
unceria nties that may cast significant
doubt aoout the Group’s or the Parent
Companys ability to continue o acop:
tha going concern basis of acccurtng for
a pericd of at least twelve months from
the date when the financiat statements are
authorised for issue.

OTHER INFORMATION

The other information comorises  the
anformation incuded in the Arnual Report,
other than the financal statements and our
Auditors report thereon The directors are
responsible for the other nformatiar,

Qur opinien on the financial statements does
rot cover *he other informatior and, except
to the extent otherwise explcty siated in
this report, we do not exprass any form of
assurance condclusion thereon.

I connecton with our audit of the financal
statements, our responsibibty 13 to read the
other informanon and, N dong so, consider
whether the other nformation is materiaily

www.archant.co.uk
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Auditor's report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARCHANT LIMITED

continued

wyish francal stetoments

e

Ingonsistent

othe Gy

i
Lt

materiaiy misstaten
Y omaieras noonssierdes
or  apparent malerna
are required o deterrming swheine
rissiaterrent o the franca
statements of a matenal russtaterrent of
The inforrration 1, based on
work we have perforred, we condude that
thare 15 a matertal misstatement of the other
information, we are requirec 1o report that
fact

musstaterner s, we

here

5 g mater:al

cther

We have nothing to report i this regard.

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS
PRESCRIBED BY THE COMPANIES
ACT 2006

I our opinion, based on ine work underraken
In the course of the audit;

e the informaticn given ir the Strategic
recort and the Directors' report for the
financial year for which the fimanca
statemsants are prepared s consistent with
the finandal statements; and

s the Strategic report and Direciors’ report
have been prepared In accordarce with
applicable legal requirerments.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE
REQUIRED TO REPORT BY
EXCEPTION

tn  the light of -he and
understanding of the Group and the Parent
Company and its environment chianed i1 the
course of the audi, we nave rot identified
material misstatements 1 the Strateqic regort
or Directors’ report

knowledge

WA e T Nt [
Ve ngue noTtingG TG rennrt o

fol owang matters onor2 300" 1o which the
Zomparies Act 2006 requires L D rebs o

SieTorallets!

you I, i

* agequats accounting records have nos
peen kept by the Parent Coripany, or
returns adequate for our audit have not
beon recewved from orarches not visited
by us, or

¢ the Parert Compa~y finanaal statements
are notn agresment wir the accounting
records and returns,; or

* certamn d sclosures of aIrectors’
remuneration specfied by law are not
made; or

* we have rot recelved a't the informaton
and expla~atons we require for our aid:

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

As explained more fully in the Directory
responsibbities statement set ouf on page
b, the directors are responsble for the
preparation of the financial statements andg
for be ng satshied that they gve a true and
fair v ew, and for such internal control as the
directors determme s necessasy to enable the
preparation of firancal statemants that arc
free from materal misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error

in preparg the financial statoments, the
direciors are resoonsitle for assessing tne
Groups and the Parent Company's ablity
1o continue as a going concern, cisclosimg,
as apphcable, matters related o going
concern and using the going concern bas:s
of accounting unless the directors either
ntend to Louidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations, o7 have no
realistic alterrative but to do so

www .archant.co.uk
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Auditor's report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF ARCHANT LIMITED

continued

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Qur obectives are to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financ.al
staterments as a whole are free from material
rrisstaternen:, whether due to fraud or
arror, and 1o 'ssue an auditor's report that
inc.udes our opinion. Reasonable assurarce
15 a high level of assurance, but s not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance w.th 1SAs (UK will always detect
a material msstaternent when (b exssts
Misstaterments can anse from fraud or 2ror
and are considered matenal i, individually or
i the aggregate, they could reasorably be
exnected to influence the econcmic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these finarcia’

slaternenis

A further description of our resporsibilties
for the aLdi of the financial statements
Is located on the Finanaa Repndting
Councii's website  at  https e froorg,
vk/aucitorsresponsiilities. Trus  descriptior
forms part of our auditor’s repot.

USE OF OUR REPORT

This report is made solely 1o the Company's
members, as a body, in accordance with
Cnapter 2 of Part 16 of the Companes Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken
5o that we rught state to the Company’s
members those matters we are reguired
to state to them in an auditor’s report and
for no ather purpose. To the fullest exient
permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to aryone other than
he Company and the Company's memoers
as a body, for our audit worx, for this report,
or Tor the opimons we have formed.

Nick Gomer

Sen:or statutory audtor
for and on behalf of
Ernst & Young LLP
Statutory Auditor
Cambridge

27 February 2019

www.archant.co.uk
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2017
Notes £000 £Q02
REVENUE 3 87,275 3F.522
OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT 3 (6.632) 1,502
Frante i~coms 7 11
Frarie ¢osts 2 {286} 370
Fnancz expensa on 0enso” Lan ity 32 {699} felote
(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION (7.606) 334
Incoms tax cred Yexpenze El 774 gdTi
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR (6,832) ‘G750
Attroatane to
Equity snavemc ders oF the Comnary (6,832} ErY
Moocorteoile o aterssts -
{6,832} 975:
ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Loss befure taration (7.606) 334
Ao asiea for
Bumiart salics 37 0 DA A5ty 4 1,920 2,272
lmparmert of :rtangib e assels and inestrants 4 3,087 2,134
Fair valus adpisments of e mteq nyastments 4 4 LHOY,
Fasiservice cost for Goararizea N wmurr Pens ons eaughsator d 3,025
Fens ar inss an setttements 4 99
Restrocturerg and ater excennonal costs 4 1,194 2,235
Lossdprofit on disposals 4 19 13,999
interest on hystonc corootation taxlaniities 4 37 716
UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX 1,779 2,932
Statatory [oss por share Basc 1 (49.2) 7.0
DHiated 1 (49.2) PO
Undery g earnngs pe srare Basc B 6.5 140
The reverue and profit/iloss) presented above are cenved from continuing operatons,
www.archant.co.uk 11
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2077

Hicte £000 £G00
Loss for the year (6,832) 875
Other comprehensive income:
Items to be reclassified to the consolidated income statement
in subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translat on o fore:gr operatons {6} 29
Net unreaized surnlusficetoh on avarahe-for sale fnarcal assetrs 1,135 WA
Net oti_'ler con:tprehensive incom? to be reclassifiec! to the 1,129 267
consolidated income statement in subsequent periods
Items not to be reclassified to the consolidated income
statement in subsequent periods:
Actuanal gams recogsad o0 penson hzb ity 32 4,397 5,837
Mo rernent on deferrza tag 3332t assoc ated w ' sensior Lab ity (835) [ERPAL
(;rl:r;qu‘:fr;rzri tt:: dizet o0 nensior sk lity arsing roma change oo the 24 -
Deferred tas on reva uat o of land and nu aings 50 26
Revaleatior ot land and nuianas 51) 38
Net other comprehensive income not to be reciass_ified to the 3 585 . 132
consolidated income statement in subsequent periods ‘ o
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (2,118) 3,451
Attributable to:
Equity sharehoiders of the Comrany {2.118) 3.451

12
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION as at 31 December 2018

2018 2677
Moes £000 G030
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
[~angime assels 12 4,928 ey
Proparty, £1arT 574 BYURITEDT i3 16,818 8,582
Ayalagle-or-sz o f rarca assets 14 4,139 3,242
Ce'errec tar assets 22 7,109 Pz
Otrar rece yanias 1 66 158
33,060 jggazz
CURRENT ASSETS
I ories S 663 753
Trade ard oiher r2cevanles by 12,250 12 14&
Castoana cash eduvalents 18 3,724 G 6EY
16,637 22408
TOTAL ASSETS 49,697 £1.441
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrow ngs ana oy erdeats 20 835 G3%
Trade and Strer payanies 19 11,774 12,726
Currers tax ab gtes 94 5224
Provisions 21 161 (k935
12,864 12,987
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provs ons 21 910 707
TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,774 19,684
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION LIABILITY 35,923 41,74
Pensior | abihiy 32 25,288 29,025
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION LIABILITY 10,635 2722
EQUITY
Cailed up srare cap ta 23 2,885 2,884
Share premiLm accohnt 24 2,676 2,575
Qmrer resenes 25 9,685 8,765
Retames garrngs 28 (4,611} 1,606
TOTAL EQUITY 10,635 12722
S Bax BG McCarthy 27 Febriary 2019
Chairrnan Drrecior
www.archant.co.uk 13
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN

EQUITY for the year ended 31 December 2018

Snare

Retanad

+ ot
Totat

pres L 2ATPINYS G Ty
Notwe £000 £300 £GA0
At 31 December 2016 2,675 7133 2.384
Loss for the year - G751 975
Other comprehensive income:
Actuana osses or pens.on habiity 37 - 5,891 4,891
Tax on persion abdoy 1,221 122710
Revauaticn of freenacld oroperty - 4g2: 482
Fairwd ae ot istad and unlisted inves merts - T3
Fureign Jdrrency ranslaticn - - 29
Other comprehensive income - 5,188 4,426
Total comprehensive income 4713 3.451
Eurchase of owr smaras held py smployee trusts - - 8!
Sate of own siaras ha'd by epployee *rsts - - 14
Dot 1o equaly Tor smane-bases nayrent - - e
Real sec or aispoiz o treeho d property - 183
Cepreciation trars e for ‘reehod vroperty - 121
At 31 December 2017 2675 1508 2,722
Loss for the year KRV B85534}
Other comprehensive income:
Actearial 3airs on peniian heidity 32 - 4,397 4,397
Tax oo pans-on -abil iy - - g1 B
Farvaluz of I'sted ard unbsted imvestments 35 - 1,125
Revaidati v of freercld property - (RN g
Deferren tax or revaluation of «and and buidngs - 50 50
Forsign carency ranslacon - - 16
Other comprehensive income - 122 3,585 FI1=
Total comprehensive income - 2G 13,247, 2,118
Purchase of own shares held by ernloyer trusts N AN
iszue of share capizal 1 2
Ceb o eaur, “or shdara-hasad nayment W21
Revaluat.er of freenoid pronerty - - 51
Realsed or dsposa of freehcld aroperty - P
Ceprec elior travster for freei cld property - 121 -
At 31 December 2018 2675 14,611 “0,635

14
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Financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 207
Noe £000 £005
T35 o fror oQeratir g 3ty tes 73 (18} 355
mro™Me tax cad (5.054) EAREE
Net cash used in operating activities (5,072) g, 245
Cash flows frem investing activities
Zurghase ¢ Clangh £ 33sets (99} A24
“Lrcnase of pronerty, prant and eay, oment {313} 415
wipmant 152 7718
{200} 4
206
ateres recewved 11 3
Net cash {used)/generated in investing activities {243) &7/
Cash flows from financing activities
Aterest pad {485) 15,279,
Firanarg costs (or pank fazies (70)
ssue of ordirary share Capital 2
Saie of oan shares - 14
Parcoase of awn shares (1) G
Net cash used in financing activities (554) 5270
Mot casin cuthowy from acting es {5.869}) 66328
Financnz costs “or fign« Fact ties 70
A prisatlor O Odl isshe Costs {a3) JE}
Net movement in cash and cash equivalents (5,842) B,654)
Opening cash and cash equivalents 8,731 15,395
Closing cash and cash equivalents 2,889 3,731
MOVEMENTS IN NET FUNDS
At 31 Cas flov: Otpes poee S
Decer-oer cas charges Decemuger
2017 2018
£600 £000 000 £500
Cash and cash equivalents 3,699 5,945 3,724
ZBT ipar/overdraft 977, 77 - Ll
L0an ssue Cnshh 29 55 4 &5
Bank loans and overdrafts 338 146 a3 835
Net funds .37 5,735 L3 2,889
www.archant.co.uk 15
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The consohdated  financial  statemerts
of A-hant Lrited ard 115 subsidiaries
collectvely the Groupt for the year ended 31
Decemoer 2018 were authorised for issue in
accordance Wit a resgiution of the directors
on 27 February 2019, Archart Limited (the
Comgany or the garent) 15 ar unlisted Imited
company  Incorperated  and  domiciled  in
the United Kingdom. Its registered office

Is located at Prospect House, Rouen Road,
Morwich TiRT TRE.

The Group's principal activity dunng the year
continued 1w ke primanly UK based and
comprise a single trace of publishing content,
predorminantly o print,  online,  through
miobile techrologles, live events and orinting.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolicated  financial  statements
have been prepared In accordance wih
Internat onat Financal Reporting Standards
(FRSY and iFRS interpretations Committes
AIRS 10y interpretations, as adopted by the
Eurcpean Union and with those parts of the
Comparnies Act 2006 applicab e o comparies
reporting uader FRS

The corsoiidated financial statemenis have
been prepared under tne historical cost
convent-an, as modified by the revaluation of
land and buidings, avadable-for-sale financ:al
assets, and fmancal assets and “inancial
habilt es Gincluding derivat ve -nstrumentsh at
fair vatue through profit or loss.

The preparation of consoldated financas
statements in conformity with IFRS reguires
the use of estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and
Hapilives at the date of the consolidated
financiai  statements  and  the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during
the year. Althcugh these estinates are
based on management’s vest knowledge of
the amount, event or actiens, actJal resuits
ultimately may differ from those estimates.

These pahicies have been consistently appiad
o all the years presented unless othenwse
stated.

NEW STANDARDS ADOPTED BY THE
GROUP

The Group has apphed the following stardards
for the first tme for tre  consolidated
financial statements for the reporting perod
commenaing 1 January 2513,

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

The adoption of these siandards did not have
eny mpact on the amounts recognised n
prior periads, and will have drited impact on
amounts recognised in the current and future
periods

STANDARD NOT YET APPLIED

The followirg standard has an effective date
after the date of these financial statements
but the Group has not early adooted the
standard and plars o adopt 1t from the
effective date adopted by the EU.

IFRS 16 Leases {effective

1 January 2019)

Under IFRS 16 the Group is requied 10
captalise assets held under opesating leases
and to recognise the corresponding lease
obligatons. The Group s also required to
recognise depreciatior charges on those
asseis and binancirg costs for the leasing
abligatans, rather than the operating ‘ease
rontals currently recogrused

16
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POL'C'ES continued

he Group has oelermired o adopt

mod fied ratroscecive basis Tor molermert og

“he

ana the Groun Wik

‘easehold prooerty on a Cese-Dy-case Das's
geperding on the lkely exit dates,

d55E55

The estimated mMpact on the Group inccme
statemert anc statement o financal sosition

a

for the year commencng 1 Jaruary 201815

Income statement:

£0G0
Cuprecation cnarges 1414
One-atirg leass rentass 1471
Frarong cost 73
NoU 1 D3l o ariome slaterent L6

Statement of financial position:

£00C
Fxort 4556ty 3321
Leasirg obl gat ons 3,337
Frpact oronet assets Jd6:

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group financal statemenrts consohidate
the f nancial statements of the Compary and
all its subsiciary underiakings drawn up to 31
December each year

SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS
Subsidhary underta<ings are al entities over
which the Group has control. Subsidiary
undertakings are fLily consolidatea from the
date on which control is transferred to the
Group. Tney are deconscidated “rom the
late that controf ceases.

The Groun appies the acquisition meihod
to account for busmess combinaticns. The
corsderation transferred for each acquistion
s the fair vai.gs of the assets transferred, the
Babilities incurred to the former owners of the

acquiree and ithe egu.iy mieresis 1siued oy

e Group and ociudes - VTR A R
58T A saby corTngent
consideraton Idert.fable

assets acqured and ¢
habidites
at ther far val.es at “he acqu

Tre (roup eCogrses

ara LonLrgant

assumned are measirec mtaly

gais

any nor-controling

interest in the acquiree on an acgussition-oy-
acquisit:on basis, erther at fair value or a7 e
Ror-control mg intarest’s pronartionate share
of the recogrized amounts of ire acguiree’s
identifiable net assets.

halances  and
eliminated  on

ransact:ons,
gams  are

Intra-group
unraa.sed

conscigatior

The accourting  polaes  of  subsdhar
underiak ngs are consistent W in the pohces
adopted by the Groun

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL
ASSETS

Availaple-for-szle finandal assets comprise
listed and uniisted equity investments and are
those that are neither classified as !
trading ror desigrated at fair value traugh
profit or loss

eid for

Available-forsale  financial assets  are
recogrised mitially at fair value on the dates
of acquisitior and are sulzsequently measured
at farr veiae. Unreaiised gans or losses are
recogrised In ather comprehensive income
and credited 1n the avanable-for-sale reserve
unti the investment s derecognised, atwh ¢h
time the cumulative gan or .0ss IS recognisec
in other operating mcome, or the .nvesiment
Is determined to be mpaired, when tig
cumalative 1oss s rechassified trom the
aval-ab e-for-sale reserve to other costs 1n the
Consoldated staternant  Daidend
income from avallable-for-sale financai asses
Is recogisad when tie shareroiders’ righs
1o receve nayment have been established
and reportad as finarce income

ncome

www.archant.co.uk
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(a) Newspaper and magazine titles

Newsspaper and magazine titles asquired
pricr te 31 December 1997 were
classified as goodwall and written off
directly to reserves

Newspaper and magaz.ne utles acguired
separately since 1 January 1998 are
measJdred on inbial reccgniton at cost
lme cost of newsnaper and magazine
titles acguired in a business corbination
is therr farvaue st t-e date of acquisition.
Hewspaner and magazine titles have
finite wseful dwves, and foilowing mital
recognition, newspaper and magazine
wiles are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation  and imparment  osses.
Irternally  generated newspaper  and
magazine titles are notl capitaised and
the related expendsture is reflecied n
profit o7 loss in the perico 1n which the

expanditare 15 InCurred.

Newwspaper and magazine fitles are
amortised or 3 straight ine basis
aver thewr uaseful ecoromic lives, and
assessed for impairment whenever there
is an ndication that the ttles may be
imgaired. Tre amortisation pericd and
the amortisation method for newspaner
anc magazine tities are reviewed at least
at the end of each reporting period
Changes in the expected useful Iife or
the expected pattern of consurrption
of future economic benefits embodied
i the asset are considered to modify
the amort sation period or methad, as
approprate, and are treated as changes
N accounfing estimates

Gains  or osses  ansng  from  de-
recogninion of nevespaper and magazine
tiles are measured as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised m the statament of orofit or
foss when the asset s derecognises

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POLICIES continued

{b) Goodwill

Goodwiil represents the excess ¢ the
cost of an acquisiton over the fair
value of the net dentifiabie assets of
the acquired subsidiary at the date of
acouisition and in accordance with IFRS 3
‘Business combmnatiaons’ 1s not amaorstised.

Goodwill arising on acg.isizions pror 1o
31 December 1957 was set off directy
against reserves and was not remnstated
on implementatior of FRS 10

The Group has elecied to take advartage
of the exernprion under IFRS 1 1ot to
restale all busness combipatiors pror
to 1 lanuary 2014, and accord:~qgiy the
value of geoodwil reporiad under UK
GAAP at 1 January 2014 is frozen,

Goodwill is allorated 10 Cast generating
Lnit

[CGUs) and is tested for impairment

anriially At the wear enc or AT ATy

other time that there 5 an indicgtion
of imparrment, and is camed at cost
iess  accumulated impairment  fossas.
Impairmert losses are charged to the
Covsolidated mncome statement. These
impalrment calculations roqure the use
of astmates and sigrificant managerment
iudgement. A descripnion of the key
assumptions and sensitivities 15 Included
inote 12

If & suobsdiary, associate or business
s subsequently sold or closed, any
goodwill arising on acguisition that was
written off directly to reserves is taken
into account in determinmyg the profit or
loss on sale or ciosure.

www.archant.co.uk
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNT'NG POL'C'ES continued

() Computer software
Computer software
captiased at cost

OreTgoatic usel

Cernces a4r2

ang nmirg the 7051 10

Computer  software  wences  are
amort sed on astraight ! ne 0ass over “he
shorter of the r usefur econornic ves and
fiva years, Compater sothw.are Mce*w:es
are assessed for impairment whenever
thera js an ndication that e so'iware
cence may be impaved.

arried at cost
armortisation arg

Computer soffwvare <
gss  accurmulated
IMpasrment

{d) Website and other digital

development costs

\Weosite and other digita development
Costs are if tne asset
created zan oo wgentified, 1t is orobable
that the asset created wi i generate future
ecanom:¢ bene’is and the development
cost can e measured reliably  Such
assets are amortised on a straight line
pas s

over their useful ecoromic lives
of nc more than three years. Where n

asset can be recegnisad, developren
expenditure and expenditure incurred in
research s charged to the Consolidated
mcome staternent in the period 17 which

s incurred.

Caoitaliseg website and other digital
deve opment  Costs are  assessed  for
impairment  wherever  there 5 an
ndicatian that  the  assets may be
mMpared.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plant and eguipment 15 staed at cost less
accumutiated deprecation and acc imulated
Impairment {osses,

addinons
peformed freguerty 8rougn To ensure Thas

d ffer matenialy from its carrying ameoa-
ANy reval anon surplus -5 recnomised it other
comprahensye noome and credied oohe
ravatuat on reserve N
edenttnatitreverses adecregse i the carrying
va ue of the same asset previously recogrised
in proft or loss, o0 owhicn case the increase
s recognised in profit o oss A revaiuation
deqatis recagrised in profit o loss, except to
the exta~t of ANY SASETG SUTDHUS N reEspedt of
that assel i the revaluation reserve v oter
comprehes sye Income

eqity except to tne

An annual transfer s made from the
revaiuation reserve 1o retainad earnings for
the difference oetwsen do
on tne carrying amount of
assets and that Cased on the revaluad assels
ariginal cost Upsn cisposa
reserve relatirg 1o the particdar asset paing
sold s transterred to retained earnings.

oroclation based
the revaluen

amny revaiuation

Depreciatior
plant and equipment,
straight lire basis
as follows:

s provided on all property,
other than iand, on
over |15 expected useful 14

Freehola buitdings 35 vears

Leasehold buidings  Per od of lease
Plant and machinery Betwear 5 and 15 yaars
Cther eguipment

and vehzcles Berweer 3 ard 7 years

The carrying vaiues of property, plant ana
equinment are reviewed for impairnent of
events or changes n arcmstarces indicate
the carrying value may rot be recoverable,
and are wntien dowr rmed ately to their
recoverable amount. Useful lives and res:dual
vaues are revevwed arnnually and where

Land and buiddings are stated at far vawe adiusiments are required these are made
compnising periodic valuatons by an exienal  prospectively
ndependent  wvaluer,  with  subsecuent

www.archant.cc.uk 19
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POL'C'ES continued

A~ tem of property, plant and equipment
15 derecogniserd wpon disposal of when no
future econam ¢ benef ts are expected o arise
from the continued use of the assct. Any gan
or toss ansing on the derecogmtion of the
asset is Inciuged i the Consolidated income
statement in the per od of derecognition.

LEASES

Assets acquired under france leases are
capizalised at the inception of the lease
and depreciated over the shorter of their
respective lease terms and the estimated
usetul aves of the assets

Rentals paa urder operatng leases are
Charged tG rcome on a straight bne basis
over the term of the lease

premeams  and  nducements  are
nised in current and non-current assets
or habiltes as aporopriate, and amortised
or released on a straght line bass over
the lease term. Vehcle rebates cue under
separate contract ave recognised at the end
of the period in wrich trey remain repayabie
to tre manufacturer under the terms of the
contract.

Sub-lease ncome 15 recognised as incore on
a straight line basis over the sub-lease term,
less allowances for situations where recovery
is doubtul

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable valtie, Cost includes all
costs incurred n brirging each product to 1ts
present location and condition.

Raws matenials, consumables and goods for
resale are stated at purchase cost on a first-
in, first-out basis.

TAXATION

The charge for corporauon tax s based or
the results for the year as adjusted for items
which are not taxed o are disaliowed. It is
calcutated Lsing tax rates n legislator that
has been eracted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet cate.

Deferred ircame tax 1s accounted for using
the balance sheet hanility methad i respect
of taxabie temporary differences ansing ‘rom
cifferences between the tax bases of assets
and iiabihities and their carrying amounts
n the financial statements. Deferred 1ax
arising from the initiat recogriton of an
asset o7 habi ity 1t a transact:on, other than
a bus.ness combiration, that at the tme of
the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxaoie profit or 'oss, 1 not recognised. in
prindpie, defecred fax habilities are recogn:sed
for ali taxaole temporary wffererces and
deferred tax assets are recogrised o th
extent that it -5 probanle trat taxable profits
wilf be avalable agamst which deductiple
termporary differences can be utihsed,

3]

Deferred tax s caculated at the tax rates
that are expecied to apply 1o the perod
when the asset 1s reased or the habity is
settied. Deferred tax is charged or crecited in
the Consolidated income statement, except
when it reiates to sterns credred or charged
to other comprehensive mcome, 1 which
case the deferred tax is aiso dealt with i
other comprehenzive ricome.

Deferred incarme tax assets and habities are
offsetwhen there is a legally enforceabls nght
10 offset current tax assets against currens tax
labilites and when the aeferred income tax
assets and Habilities relate 1o ncome iaxes
levied by the same taxation authonty on
gither the same taxable entity or differant
taxable entities where there 15 an intention 1o
settle the halances on a net basss

20
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES continuea

PROVISIONS

PIOVISICNS @r8 reCOgnISEn the Group
has a cresent obigation as a result ¢f a past
event, ara itisnrobasle tnat toe Group v s e
regired 1o setiie that obligai.on
are measured a7 the directors’ best
G* toe ocligat:o“s at twe palance sh
and are discourted 1o prezent vaide whees
the effec s

IRYLaT=r

matenal.

Contingent uabilities are rot recognised,
but are ciscloseg uriess an cutfiow of

resoluces is remote. Cortingent assels are
not recognised, but are disclosed

inf owr of econamic penefit is probabie

wwhera an

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

{a} Functional currency transactions
ftems :nciuded in the firangial statements
of each of the Group’s
measured usng the curency of the
primary economc envronmant owhich
the operaies functional
currency’. The consoiidated  ‘nanda’
stat=rrents are presented no sterling
£:, which 3 the Group’s presentaton
CUrYeNCy.

entity t'the

WY

{b) Transactions and balances

Forergn currency  transactions  are
translated into the funchional currency
L4500 the exchange rates prevallng at
the dates of the transactions. Foregn
exchange gains and losses resultirg from
the sertlement of such transactions and
feom the translaton at year end exchange
rates of monetary assets and habilitics,
nctuding cash and equlvalents,
denominated .0 foreign currencies are
recogrused in the Consclhdatea income
staterrent.

{850

{c¢) Group companies
The resutts ard finarcal oositior of al
the Group entities that have a funct onal
currency differert fram the presentat on
currency ars  translated  nto the
presentation currency as follows:

o incore ard experses for 2ach incore

trenslated  at
exchange rates, and

statermnent are dwErage

icr alt resulting

are recognised

excha~ge offerences
in other comprehensive
ncome.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade recewables do not carry any interes:
They are recordec mitialy at Tar value and
subsegue~tly measured at amorused cost
for situations where recovery 15 doubtis
Such allowances are based on arn indwidual
assessment of each receivable. Generaily, this
resuits in therr recogninan at nominal value
aflowanca for ary coubul debts

less any a

TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables are not  nterest geanrg
They are recorded intally at fair value ano
subsequentiy measured av amortised cost.
Generaly, this results 10 therr recogrition at
nominai value

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equiva ents include cash at
bark and in tand and short-term deposiis
wath it al maturties of three months or less.
Cash and cash equivatents are shown net of
hank overdrafts where the Gro.p have the
nght of net settlerment

Forthe ourpose of the Conzoiidated statemens
af casn cash and cash equivalerts
consist of cash &ne rash equivalenis as
iefined above, net of outsianding bank inans
and gverdrafts,

flows,

www.archant.co.uk
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

BORROWINGS

Borrcwings  are naimally  recognised at
fair wvalue ret of transacton costs and
subsecuently measured &t amortised Cost
Loan arrangement costs In respect of debt
are capitalised and amortised over the life
of the debt at 4 constant rate. Finance costs
are chargec to the Consoldated ncome
staternent, basad on che effective mnterest
rate of the associatec porrow ngs

PENSIONS

The Group operates a defined contribution
pansion scheme, the Archant Pension Plan,
which 5 open 1o elgible employees The
Group’s consributions are charged to the
Consolidated mcome statement in the year in
wihuch they are payable

The defned benefit pension scheme :“the
Scheme' i operated by the Groap was dosad
to new members o February 1998 and for

future aceruai fram 31 May 2016

The cost of providing benefits under the
Scheme s determined using the projected
unit  cradit methed,  which  atinbutes
entit ement to benefits to the current period
(to determine current service cost) and to the
current ang pror periods (to getermine the
present value of defined berefit obligations)
and 1s based on actdanal agvice. Fast service
costs are recognised i the Consolidated
ncore statement on a straight line basis
over the vesting period or immediatety if the
benefits have vested

The interest cost of the Scheme obligations
15 delermined oy apply ng the discount rate
to the openmng present value of tre benefit
aolgation, taking mto  account material
charges i the obligation durng the year
The interest ncome on Scheme assets s
deterrmned by multiphyang the farr value of
Scheme assefs at the beginning of the year by
the discount rate, adjustea for the effect on
the fair value of Scheme assets of contributions
recerved and henefits paid dunng the year,

The difference between the »terpst income
on Scherne assets and tne Interest cost on
Scheme obhigaticns is recognised in the
Consol dateg income statement as other
finance income or experse.

Actuarial gars and losses, any difference
between the expected retun an Scheme
assets and that actually achieved and any
hfferences that anse from expenence or
assumption changes are recegn sed in full In
the Consolidated statement of comprehensive
Incorne in the perod 1In which they oocur

The Schome asset or habilty in the
consobdated statement of finarcal postion
comprises the present valuge of the Schemse
sbiigation wesing a discount rate based on
Figh quality corporate bonGs: iess any past
service cost not yet recognised arg less the
‘air value of Screme assets aut of which the
coligations are to be settied directly

The Group alse mekes pravision “or the
cap-tal vatue of unfundad pensions to certain
current and former ermployees in accordance
witr iIndependent actuanal advice

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group’s activ ties are primanly UK based
and comprse a singie trade of publsping
content, predeminantly m  prirt, onlre,
through mobile technologies, e avents and
prmting

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises the far value of the
consideration received or reccivable for the
sale of goods and services in the ordinary
course of the Group'’s actwvities Revenus s
shown net of vaiue added tax, trade discounts
and anticipated returns a*ter eliminating sales
within the Group.

22
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POL'C'ES continued

Tre Group recogrises reserLe when ine
\

amrourt of rever.2 Car be vl anly measured,
15 prokatee Hhat future ecoromic panefs
Wil fow to the entty and when spec®ic
coter:a have been met 107 2acn oF the Groups

acIyties as follows

s Advertisirg ard crculaTaon ravenues are
recogn sed on subicat on o display

o Subscriphion resenues are recognised over
tre percds 0o whch the
relate.

* Prnting and contract pushshing
are  recogrised on delwvery of  the
cukhcation,

* Other revenues are rocognised when the
goods or services fniave been suopled or
provided to the customer, ang thera 1< 3
contractual obligation for the customer to
pay for those goods or services

subscriptions

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS -
EQUITY-SETTLED TRANSACTIONS

The cost of equity-settiec transactions with
empioyees s measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted
Using an approbriate vaiuation modsl

That cost 1s recogrused n staff costs {Nete
5, Together with a corresponding ncrease
o other capital reserves in equity, over
the period M which the performance anc/
condiions  are  fulfiled. The
camulative expense recogrised for equity-
sefted transactions at each reportng date
untd the vesting date reflects the extent to
which The vesting perod bas expired and the
Group's pest estimate of the number of ecuity
mstruments that wili ultmately vest  The
profit or ioss expenze or credit for a oenod
reprasenis e movemant n cumulatve
axpense recogn sed at the begmning and erd
of that penod

or  serice

ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN
UNDERLYING OPERATING PROFIT
ihe directors
profit and
provide  addtonat
sharenolders o the uraerying perforrgnce
cfthe business. Thesen
with how underiving b 55 performance
15 measured interrally Tre underlying orofs
before tax measurs 1s 1ot a recognised profit
rreasure under IFRS and may ot be directly
comparable with ad usted profit measures
used by otner comnanies The adustrrents
mads ta reported profit before tax are o
exciude tne followng:

Delieve that The

el e
oL B

azrmTas
ST # 5

.res are consistent

=

s profits and cosses on
proparties,

¢ amortisanan of irtangible assets;

s mparment of
Investments and ioans,

*  restructunng €osts,

s Cosis relating 1o strategy changes that are
not considered normal operating cos of
the underlying busiress, and

¢ other signficant  and  ore-off
of income  and that
underly ng trading

the dispesal o

mianaible assels,

[i=1ani

dizict

SXOeNse

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the financal siazemenss
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions concering the future, Those
estimates and judgements are contirualy
evaluated and are Dased on  historcal
expenence and  other relevant  factors,
inciuding expeciations of future events that
are beleved to be reasonabie
arcumstances  The  resuliing
esumates wiil, by defirition, be likely to diffar
from the related actugl resuits The estimates
and assumptions that ~ave a sign.ficant risk of
£aLsing a matesdial adjustment o the carrying
amounts of assets and lLabilities within the
next financial year are discussed belows:

~rder the

AccounINg

www.archant.co.uk
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Pensions

Pension  accounting  requires  certain
assumptions o be made in order to value
our abligations and to determine the charges
to be made to the Consolidated :ncome
statement  These fgures are parhicularly
sensitive to assumntions for aiscount rates,
mortality, inflation rates and exnected iong-
term rates of returr on assets. Details of
assumptions are given in Note 32.

Provisions

Provisions recognised at the balance sheet
date are detaied in Note 21 and include
amounts  for dilapdations  and  onerous
oropeity lease Ccosts.

Altrough  provsions  and  Labidites  are
reviesved om 3 regular basis and adjustad to
reflect management's best current est mates
the wdgementai nature 5° these iterms means
that *uture amouns settled may be different
from those provided.

Impairment

The Group is required to test whether assets
nouse sn o operations have suffered any
ymparment. The recoverable amounts of
cash generating units nave been determ-ned
based on tre higher of fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. The calcutation of vaiue
i use requres the estimation of future cash
flowws expected to anse from the continuing
operation of the cash generating unit and
the selection of a sutable discourt rate in
order 10 Calculate the present value. Given
the degree of subectvity mvolved, actual
outcomes couid vary significantly from these
estimates.

24

www.archant.co.uk



ARCHANT ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the consolidated finandial statements for the year ended 31 Decernber 2018

OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT

2018 27
e £000 D00
A LETT T re e e 42,455 37300
Corodlat b e 23,068 243584
U573 evence 9,324 8738
Duracreverues 12,428
Revenue from continuing operations 87,275 EE)
Underlying operating costs
Paw mater a5 and Ton.aman el 7,026 7835
Saffross 5 39,496 43243
Cepresiatior o7 prope™y, nant and egapent 13 1,937 22
Loss on dsposarl of croperty, D ant ang ecooment - 21
Sirer operaling £A0er e 36,100 39,27
orvieriying soeralt G Cosls 84,559 92,54
Underlying operating profit 2,716 4057
items not included in underlying operating profit
Arortsation ©F rtargib 2 assets & 1,920 2,272
Iraemer T o7 ~langib 2 assets ard inestments + 2,887 2,138
Faialue adustrents against urbsted investmerts 4 204 147
Fast serice coc for Guararteed Norrumn Pensians 2gua saton 4 3,025 -
Foersion foss o st erents 4 99
Restriciunng and sther 2r2enlona 058 4 1194 2,233
Froies an disposas 0F reehcurd nroperty suosicany
Lrgettak gy and unksted investments a 19 3,999
Items not included in underlying operating profit 9,348 2.550
Operating {loss)/profit {6,632) 1,502
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION
The fcllowing tems have been included i armving at profitfiloss: before taxaton.
2018 2017
Mot £000 £500
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 7,026 7,255
Trade receivables impairment 17 108 151
Operating lease rentals payable
s propety 980 1,235
® pigrt 3nd equipmens 1,223 267
Sub-lease income
* ORerTy 47 47
Auditor’s remuneration:
e Auait — parent coripany 4l consoidation 40 39
¢ Ao - subs dares 60 o0
¢ Tax corpilance 13 23
Net foreign exchange differences 30 124

www.archant.co.uk
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4 ITEMS NOT INCLUDED IN UNDERLYING
OPERATING PROFIT

2018 2017
MNees £000 £000
Fazt service cost for Guaranteed Vamum Persons egeaisaton 32 (3,025}
Pensao™ 1055 on satton ors 32 {99)
Amortization of ntanaib-2 assets 12 {1,920) (2212
Iropa rment of irtacgble assets 12 (2,887) 12,135
Fair val.e adjusiments against L sted inves'mants 14 (204} 101
Restructornng costs {690} 17,125
Proporty portiong (anond sa1om {213) 9",
Pansion oulk rransfar e«grcise {254) -
Legal ard profesacnat fees o jegal restraciong {44)
Professioral ‘ees in relancn o histonc corporaton fas 1abhites - 123
055 01 A Sp0sa AT invesTrentsuosidiary urdertacng (38) (3%
Profin oo disnosal of “ezold croperty 26 4,038
Recognised in operating profit {9,348) 2550
Intersst or hstone corporation tax iatnhtios 2] (37} T8
Total {9,385) 12,266

PAST SERVICE COST FOR GUARANTEED MINIMUM PENSIONS EQUALISATION
in Qctober 2018, the High Tourt made a landmark jucgement confirming that pension
schemes are required to egualse male and female members’ beneits for the effect of
guranteed minimum pensions (GRAPY The pctimaterd impact of GMP equalisaton has resuited

In an increase of £3,025,000 1o the Scheme’s habilities.

RESTRUCTURING COSTS
The restructuring costs arise from recdundancies arc related relocation and other costs resa ting
from a rumber of inraties to improve The productivity of the operating div-sions.

PROPERTY PORTFOLIO RATIONALISATION

The Group continues to reduce 1ts property portfolio, and has urdertaken a planning brief
on the future use of Prospect House. The Group nas incurred costs in relation to the planning
pref, the exts from a number of properties, and further costs in scararg and acquining
reolacement accommodation

PENSION BULK TRANSFER EXERCISE

I January 2018, Archant made a transfer offer to ail deferred members of the Final Salary
saction of the Pension Schems, except trose members who had previously opted out of
receiving the offer. Members over the age of 55 at 1 April 2018 were also provided with an
ostrate of their early retirement benefit. To help members make an informed choice, the
Group appointed and naid for an independent Financial Advisor.

LEGAL AND PROFESSIONAL FEES ON LEGAL RESTRUCTURING
Following settlement of the nistoric corporatior tax habibties, the Group has commenced a
process to simptify the corporate structure.

At non-recurring items recogrised 1N tae Consolidated income statement anse from the
contin.eng operations of the Groun.
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STAFF COSTS

Average monthly number of staff 2018 207
Lol oG, ot Ny @Ta reta 300 SUES 1,277 G20
rOuD TEac ot e 14 e
1,291 427
Full time equivalents 1,120 L 2ar
2018 2037
Pay and benefits Hotes £000 £050
Voages ard salar es 32,764 35,847
So0 al sec.rty Cnsh 3,382 3,804
Trher Lems on COsts 3,373 2,848
Skarz-bases cayrents i (23) 1561
39,496 43 243
Cyeam® ayna St Ter (oA mr Nen s e
;i;e:ooin:?w tior Guarsntesd Mo my 33 3,025 )
Excentonal nension lass o0 settlamrents 32 99 -
42,620 43,2432
Caosls wetluded 1 other poerse: costs o resnect of daf red
contrbunon soneme 2,548 2,282

KEY MANAGEMENT COMPENSATION

included above are the followirg amounts i respect of key managerrent compansation

2018 207
Average monthly number of staff 13 12
Pay and benefits Mote £600 £033
Wages ard salares 1.588 517
Performance re'ated boruses 250 25&
Qrner nemefts 80 37
Compansatior foross of offce 106 104
Seoat secunty costs 254 295
Gther persion costs 102 7
Share-based caymiants 3 {23} ({56}

2,357 2,208
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5

STAFF COSTS continued

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

2018 2007
£000 0eoo
Sagregate rermurerat.or 1 respect of Gua Bty serocss 1,017 555
Zoempany contributions 1o defirea cortribut on pens on schames -
1,017 G55
IN RESPECT OF THE HIGHEST PAID DIRECTOR
2018 2077
£000 £CO0
Aggragate rerurerat -0 rcladicg annuai Bonust 430 459
Acgruen eement oF IGng 180 DoNUS B ans 91 -
521 499
2018 2007
Number Mumiger
Aurpar of directsrs o rece ven shares o respeach o7 gualifyaing
SETA00S Nil il
Numbrr of options granted to 2 rectors wnder the 2010 LTIP
Tota numnes of apiens granted 1o dirsctore at 1 faradry 345,000 295.050
Uphicos grarted ot the year 195,000 50,000
Laosed o7 ng s year {163,334) -
Tola number of sprors granted to dirsctors at 37 Decembe 376,666 345,000
Number of dirsctors who exercsed shace cptons Nil M
Murnber of diroctors acoruing beiefts under defined benehit pension
scremes Nil Nl
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6 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

W diale Rt nLentve pan, a ot a Lpate
T LTI may resuttin engible evployess o oM

remunsrat or n e form of sngres ¢ OrrpEny veduTy

The creat recogrsed vowanes and salar es for share-nased payments rorespec. of empicyee
£.

350002007 crad t £15€,300;

SEMICES

(A9 =ivd

2011 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE PLAN (2011 LTIP)

Tha 2011 LTIP wvas anprovea by shareboiders et the AGA o 12 Apric 2017

]

in each of 2015, 201€, 2017 and 2018, certa n empioyees were grarted Aporoved Ophons
arsd Uraouroced Cptions over shares 1= Arcrant Limated, tne final vesting of which s subedc
to continued employment within the Group and satisfaction o7 the performance corditions

The proporson that vests wili be determired by the growt~ in the Groups operating profit

calculated on a like-for-iike basis before ex-:ep—t:om! Items, measurad against 1argets set 4t the
heginning of the plar cycle

The Approved Options and Unapproved Opt ons ca” pe exardised petween the third and tenth
arniversary of grant. The Remuraration Committee may award a oartcipant a condmional
aiscretionary Bonus Award, nayacle in cash, whose maximurm gross amount is eguivaient 0
the vatue of “he Approven Share Options subject to the Borus Award on the Grant Date

Share options issued under the 2011 LTIP

Annroven share optiors doapnrayved srare opL.ons
Nurmwer of shares fyeeigh wd averago | Teamber oF seares [Weigted grerage
prarase proa T syarf.se price £

At 31 Decamber 2017 267,272 10l 427,723 SRS

Gotions grant=d dur rg

the yeqr 223,569 174287
Forfeitenicancelea

durng tte yaar 00,000 11 eh
Lapsed 3unng the year i120,000h (162,335

At 31 December
2018 305,547 O78 397013 06O

JOINT SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN (“JSOP")

ASOP wgs establshed on 25 September 2014 under which eligible empioyees may be a'fered

e opportunity 1o acquire shares held joimtly with the frustee of an ewo\ofeﬂ bereht trust

operat ted oy tne Company. The employee :nterest :n each share is equai to any value above a
hurdie ser at e ume of entering the 150P agreement, the remaining value 'n each share a

any time be.omgs to the trustes,

In October 2014 the Corrpany entercd into a JSOP agreement with one partgpant and EFG
Trast Company Lirrited me “Trustee™ wsing 150,000 shares already held by the Trustes
Adi shares vested and were released in 2014 The hurdie was set 21 £1.20, and an additicha:
award was made to the particapant of up 10 £180,000 payabie 1n cash, ov at the discretion of
the Compary in shares, on the sale of the jontly-owred shares
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8

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS continued

SHARE INCENTIVE PLAN (51P)

The SIP 15 an HMBC approved scheme. Ehgible employess may be my ted from ime to tms
0 purchase shares in the Company, and may be awarded ‘urther shares, either conditionai

on the purchase of snares and/or wreonditonatly All 3P shares are n

behatf of the particisanng employses.

Mo SIP awvards have been granted since 2008

FINANCE INCOME

=|d by the SIP Trustee on

2018 Rl
£000 £CG0
Income from available-for-sale investments

Orner divdends frop isted asd apisted muestrents -
Interest received 11 3
i1 3

FINANCE COSTS

2018 2007
[4otes £000 £000
[~rerest pavanle or band loars, overdraits and “acinties 115 128
Arrorisation f lean sl Losts 43 26
interest on ~1stonc corpuranon wax labilites 4 37 706

Fraamoe rosts o funrding Newspaper Sooety pension defict 21 91
286 370

30
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

{a) Analysis of tax charge

2018 o7

Notes £0600 £290
Current tax:
LFLIFD0rENON 13X 07 08 TOr e 2T 96
Tar ouecdanger sroviden pror 2ats {(172) L9538
Current tax on loss before tax {76} <937
Deferred tax:
Cng taTon and reversal o T g o ffererces (561) 1389
Qrgnaton and eversal of tmoag 3 flerercas reat g 1o pros
Jears {11 489
Org ~aton ang reverse! o pens or nabil y L merg a fferences {126} 258
AGLETTIENTS 3 RsPeCT 0T O Of yEaTs - 2,753
AdusimenT anso g oM charge ©orate ©F C0r0onanon 1ax - 14
Total deferred tax 22 (698) 2,247
Total tax {credit)/charge by {(724) €d!

Analysis of tax charged in the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income
2018 7017
£000 £Q000
Deferred tax:
Tax or persion actlity 811 127
lzx or persion 1aiihity arsimg o Cnande nrae - 50
Frocoold pranerty revasatons {50) 1200
Frea~oly progerty reva uabons adjustrents = ating o pricr years - 508
Total deferred tax 761 1,703
www.archant.co.uk 31
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10

|NCOME TAX EXPENSE continued

{b) Tax reconciliation

The tax assessed o rhe Inss for the year is higher 12017: highen than the standard rate of
€5 are reconaiiec be ow

corporation tax n the UK of 19.00% (2017: 19 25%) The differenc

2018 2077

Nete £000 £000
Loss from ordinary activities before tax (7.606) L3z
Loss from sedmary actoanes muinhed by standard rate of
COTRoration tax n ine UK (1,445) i
ArjLstments to current tax nrespect of prior vears {(172) 4,538
Aujustrments o deferred tax i respect of pror years {11} 3753
Restaterent of deferray tax baiances for reduct.onn re
COFNOTATIT™ LA rate . o
Sxoenses not deduchb 2 90 Tax purposes 133 &2
MNon taxanle crad ts - 147,
Irchgilbe amortsat o ol goodva and intangible assets 80 45
Irelgibie mpaiment o ntanmib e ass2ts - 4G
Farr value aopustmaeis of urbisted mvestinents - (1
Other permane~t differences 23 62
Torrargtior tax nsses At recogasad 569 -
Imsac” of changes e rate of Corparat on tax 23
Aapustmon: o accountng protis fur cap ta nans 26 aciel
Tote fax ‘Cewtycrange Giar {(774) &4

(c) Factors that may affect future tax charges
The Finance Act 2016 enactec on 15 September 2016 reduced the rate from 1 Apri 2020 to

17% Accordingly, deferred tax has been calculated at the tax rates that are expecied 1o apply

when the related asset 1s reabsed or lability is settled 1n these financial statements.

The above change 1o the rate of corporation ax wili impact the amount of future cash tax

payments 1o be made by the Greup.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO MEMBERS OF

THE PARENT COMPANY

As permitted oy Section 408 of the Companries Act 2006, Archant Limited has not oresented
Its oW INcome staterrent or statement of comprehensive expense. The loss dea't with n the

firancial statements of the parent company was £7,630,00012017: foss £3,208,000:

32
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11 LOSS PER ORDINARY SHARE

Tie cacutator o7 16ss per orgiracy sndate (EPS3 03%ed Or 03 270 12a 2nd The we ghled

Jueraga tumper SF shares -~ Ssue gur TgTe year

D.wied ioss per share iz cased an Qrdl’?cf:,-’ ShAres Caiculgared o e tanie pelg

2018
‘000 A0

Voo ghted averane Ut et 07 20 tary 5t artt U RELD 14,421 TAdnd

~arrpan oF oo cay snates exciLeed from £S5

{526) 1225
umnar GF SrG mary 37ares S EPS 13 cuatig 13,895 13,895

DULE DERAT & Ormmary staves
Oplzes g-anted wrger 2 20611 L717 703 ©

14,598 T4

As i pravicus years, urderlying earnmngs per share have also been disciosed as t-e direcors
corsider that ths alternative measure gives a mare comparable naication ¢of the Group
underly nig trading performance

w

The u~deriying earnings per share ras been calculated by using the profits/ioszes: attnbutacle
shareh o\der\, adiusted as follows
2018 2018 2017 2017
Pence per I Perie per
£000 p 7900 '
share share
Lass athr outable to srarenolders/oss cer
zhare {6,832) {49.2) V375 RN
Fesructuring and uither excepusnal costs 1,200 8.6 2,239 Dl
Fast sery ce 2ost “or Guararteec BAmmar
F ndd olik transter wett ement Latge 3,124 22.5 -
w07 sad mgarmean: of ;mrang ole
4,807 34.6 441 318
Fa:r value aCisTrertss of unlhisted
nvestrents 204 1.5 01 07
Excontional oeses lass crolits on dsposals of
feehore pronerty, sunsidian, urdertaings
and un sted mresiments 12 0.1 3,995 28 8;
Esceptional interest charge on hstoric
corpurat.on tas ab it s 37 0.3 716 51
Tax -noact of exceptional tems (1,684} (12.1) (364 2 E
Lanltal qdl”‘? ACDIoV S Or on eGa’
restruciunrg 30 0.2 - -
Defarred 3% a7 MeTT 305 TG 01 {ange
A rate of Corporaion tax - - 16 [
Urderyirg earr ~gs per share 898 6.5 1543 120

www.archant.co.uk 33



ARCHANT ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

12

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

orbasdi | Neyspapsr anigre Sectecars Toimal
titles toes

£330 LCo0 £000 L£43¢ 000
Cost:
A7 31 Decembar 2016 7,336 112,483 503,358 £,353 175,450
Mg nsItions - 124 424
Cerecogmition - - T b,
4% 31 Decambar 2077 7,300 112,489 53,358 6616 176,763
ACqusions - - 29 39
Crarecognition - - 490 1430:
At 31 December 2018 7,300 112,489 50,358 6,225 176,372
Amortisation:
%7 31 Decamber 20406 5408 107171 43,94 6,113 82,824
Frovided durirg e year 593 (=X 163 2,272
[mpaiment - 223 915 2139
Berecogritton - AR i
At 31 Decer~ber 2077 6,408 108,932 45,621 6,165 167,126
Frowron daneg the year 445 1,266 259 320
imgar-ment 348 1,375 593 - 2,837
Darecogmiton - - 489, LEET
At 31 December 2018 6,757 111,352 47,450 5,885 171,444
Nt boor value
At 31 December 2018 543 1,137 2,908 349 4,928
At 3t December 2517 832 3,557 4,727 451 G637
A0 31 Decernber 2016 852 5,372 7,84 190 13,624

The Group's bank overdrafts and barrowings under the revolying credit fachty are secured
by a fixed and floating charge gver the undertaking and all property and assets presert and
futire, inciudirg goodwiil, book debts, uncalied capital, bulld ngs, fixtures and fixed plant and

machinary {Note 203

Al amortsation and impairment ¢rharges 0 the year have been charged through operating
costs i the Consolidated ncome statement.

The carryima values of ail intangibie assets are reviewed for impairment at the end of the
tirst full year folowing acquisition and in other periods if events or changes In crcumstances

mdicate t~a carrying vaiues rmay not be recoverable

34
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12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS continued

IMPAIRMENT OF INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
' afcorcarce witn AS 36 ‘*rﬂpa‘rrr‘-e"'r of Assets” The carryng values o7 newspaner Diles,
rmagazne tles and goodvail have peen compared 10 tner recoueral € 3maunis, ren:

Ly rher vaiue in Lse 1o e Grodp

4!

Mmagaz:me LUes,
T ash G'—\rzer_:_:

-

TGT. The recovera d from ovaue n
Cufalions are nose regarding
the growith rates, expeciad changes 16 revarues aﬂd J rect COSTS Guning the ner0a, &hdl
the discount rates appilied These assumptions have been revisvied duning the year in ignt
of f_r“e corrent economic envirgnment, The value i use calculation uses Dost-tax cas~ fow
ons based or the financa budgets approved oy the Board for 2019, The growth
cash flows beyond 201% assume an annual RPL incraase orly and no ur“ederiymg
J,xtk Managemen® estimates discoLrt cates us ng post-tax rates that refiect curre=7 mareet
zsessmants of the time vai.e of money long-term sxpacted dem q- ity ratios and tne risks
speaficto t7e CGU's The cost of capital and thereliore the miscount rate applhed —o future cash
fierws wwas 8 4994 {2017 8957%

Tra Group prepares d scounten cash flow forecasts denved from the most recent financial
budgets approved by management and extrapo ates those cash flows 1o perpeturty pased
on an estumated annual RPI increase of 2.5%. The present value of the cash
comparec to the caryng vaue of the asset

r o
TOws S tnen

he sensitivity of the assumptions uncerlying the va uatior methodclagy has been assessed
for the following vanaties

Sensitivity scenarios Resuit

Siowtk rate of 1% aler 5 years ratmer tran 2 5%: adaioral moa rrent required foe
Discourt rate of 8 497, irathar than 8,49 79) Addaral srana rrment raquired £423%
Zero grow i rate from 2020 onvvards Actuet aral impa rment regquimed Ep
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13

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

'

Freeho d Leaseboa Prart anu Orrer Assel3 0 Totet
property b ldngs macrary o equpment course of
& wercet loorsirucl on
£eoo o0 toCo {500 £000 £00G

Cost or valuation:
4131 December 2016 4,000 4543 36,304 2,805 02 £3.66%
Agditiors - 138 34 3ie 52 G
Disposas - 278 - 1359 - 637
AL 31 Deceriber 2077 14,900 284 36,338 12,772 50 63,444
Addiiars - & 12 130 165 3i3
Disposaly 173G (A2 184 9930 B 1,173
At 31 December 2018 13,870 248 36,342 11,909 215 62,584
Depreciation:
Ar 31 Decamber 2010 21 304 32,016 16,996 - 43,3237
Crarge for year 259 25 171 658 - 2,827
Dnsposa s - 1277} - 31g (596}
A1 31 Darenber 2017 250 52 33187 333 ~4 B2
Charge fo- yaar 257 30 1,164 286 - 1,937
D.snesaly 15 132 =y eetsy 11,033
At 31 December 2018 532 58 34,343 10,833 - 45,766
Net book value:
At 31 December 2018 13,338 190 1,999 1,076 215 16.818
At 31 December 2077 13,720 222 215 1,439 50 18,782
At 3 Decamber 2076 13,979 154 4,283 1,803 gy 20,328

Tre Group's bank overdrafts ard borrowings urgder tre revolving creait faclity are secured by a fixed and
fioating charge over the undertaking and all prope-ty and assets present and future, :including goodwil!, book

debts, uncalied capital, puldings, fixtures and fixed plant and machirery (Note 20}

An independent valuation of the Group’s freehold property was performed by vaiuers to determine the fair
value of the freehold property as at 30 Novernber 2016 The revaiuation surpius, net of applicable deferred
mcome taxes was credited 1o other comprehensive ncome and 15 shown in other reserves 1 sharcholders’

2oty
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14

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT continued

The cost or valuation of land and buildings at 31 December 2018 comprises:

Freen g sl _egseho
L0070 LG

Aty Latin” 13850
AL ozt - 248
1360 245

The historical cost of freehold and leasehold land and buildings is as follows:

Frocho o Leazerald
2018 2007 2018 2017
£000 £000 £000 400
C st 12,112 12,125 248 284
Aogrendlo gepracal an (5,682) 5,464 {(58) F2:
Net caroyirg zmount 6,430 G,6% 190 222

Depreciancn for the year or the Group's freehold properties has been hased an tnew revalyed
arrounts. Based on cost the consolidated charge would have been lower by £28,000 (2017:

£30,000;

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Lsted U=l sten Totat
£000 £3G0 £0C0
Fair value
A 31 Derercher 2076 a 3922 2631
Ada L ors 3 3
Fair va .e acius et tnrmuge Income Statemen: - 131 a1
Fair vawe agiLsmer: nrougn Jirer
COMODTerans ve INCGme - 791 74T
A7 31 Decenbier 2017 9 3,235 3,244
Addit ons - 20C 200
Dsplsas 3 1316 BN
Fair value adjustment thra,go Income Staterment - 204; 204
Far value ad ustment througlh Ctrer
comiprebensive ~come 4 1222 1.2°8
At 31 December 2018 2 4,137 4,139

Lsied investments are investments in listed equity securtes that present the Group wwith
cpportunity for return through dwidend income and trading gains. The unhizieo mvestments
are non-controlieg interests and inciude a strateguc holding of 3.5% in PA Group Limited (The

Press Association:

The fair va u2s of histed investmerts are based on quoted market prices. The fair values of
unlisted investments are determired by the directors based or cublished Sinancal nformaton,
including finandial statements ano eq uty transactions.

www.archant.co.uk
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

The consolidated f ranaal statements inciude the followmg princpal suisid-ary undertakings,
ali b which are un'isted companies Archant BHGC Limted s a company | mited by guarantee
giwven by Archart Holdings Lirnted. Al other subsidiary underta<ings are wholly owned
and incarporated i England, with the excention of The Britisk Connection, Inc which s
incorparated it the United States of America.

Those companies In which e equity is held by a subsid ary undertakirg are ma-ked wih an
astensy.

Compan -
Company regis':rat‘i’on Activity

number
Subsidiary undertakings
Arcrant BoG0 Limitad 7733475 Holreng comoany
Arcrant Community tded a moid ngs Latad - 4243174 Holang comoany
Argpant Commurnity Med a Limited » 19300 Pled a comoany
Tre Brtsn Cornection, irc * not applicacle *Aagazine dstr buation
Archant Holdings L nred 40401106 HAolong comoary

For ai' UK subsidiary undertakings listed above, ot~er than Achant Commun 1y Media bmited,
in accordance vith secticn 479C of The Compan es Act 2006 the Company has guararteed
ail cutstanding liabel tes 1o which those subsidary undertakings are subyect at 31 December
2018 until they are satisfied in full Accordingly, each of t-ose UK subsidiares is exempl under
seciion 4794 from the requiremants of the Companies Act 2006 relating to the audit of

ACCOLT IS
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17

INVENTORIES

2018 2077

£000 £005

fNewson=t gacer 7F3 237G of 0t 7g mater abs 550 505
Segiree ng ans e fan oa snares 98 172
e 15 ia
663 iz

Tna cost of swertores for newspnnt, paper, ks and prntng matenals recogrsad as
an expense by the Group Ir the vear was £7,053.000 (2077 £7,937,00%. The credt for
rwvantones of engmeenng and mechangal spares recogrised by the Groug in the year was
£32,000 12017 credit £22, 000 Provisions agair st inventones for engineering a~d mechanica
spares of £58,000.2017: £74,6001 were charged In operalng expenses.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2018 2017

£000 {000

frade recavables 9,598 9873
Lews DOVISIOT o mmpairrent 37 recevanies {133) 1128
Tratde recenables - net 9,465 3,735
Orner recenvan.es 1,025 54
Propay e e accrued rcome 1,826 o3
12,316 12,344

Clrrant 12,250 "2 he
Mor-curen: 66 98
Total 12,316 ©2,344
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

Asat 31 Decerrber 2018, trade receivables ¢f £123,000 12017 £138,000 ware imipared and
fully provided for Moverments « the provision for impairrment of recervables were as foilows.

2018 2007
£000 £600
AT start o veat {138) R EIH
Cnargen n the ~come staterrent {108) 161
Ut sed 113 183
atand o vear {133) 1138

The movements in the provision for impaired recervables have been included 1n ocperaing
expenses in ine Consolidated income statement

As at 31 Decernber 2018, trade receivabies of £3,8405,000 12077 £3 710,000 were past due
but not :#mpared. The ageng anatysis of the pas: due amae.unts s as tollows.

2018 20707

£000 {GO0
Provhor past aee or epaded 5,625 5.G25
2ast due DLt not rmoared:
Lass tha= 30 days 2,717 2503
Frors 30 to €75 davs 701 552
From 61 1 95 days 294 303
Nore g S0 days 128 92
Az zrd of year 9,465 9,735

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2018 2017

£000 £500
Cashoas banks anc o band 3,724 8,669
Zash ana cash equivalents ~ Consondaied statement of inanca
nos taor 3,724 9,669
Less ban< toans and overdratt (835) 9ER
Ivet casn and cash 2auwva’ents in Corsohdatad staterront of case fiows 2,889 8,721
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20

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2018 20"=
£000 £003
ade £ay20 85 2,978 3,338
Ditertar ardsnla selaty 1,022 PRl
Oeroavaboas 1,788 1238
ACrrLal ano nefacred e 4,169 2,723
w050 DHOCI N aguaTCe 1,817 1,773
11,774 "3.722
Cojrar 11,774 2,720
don-currert - -
11,774 12,729
BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS
AND FACILITIES
The bank ioans, overdrafts ann faclities comprese:
2018 201/
£000 £0006
Amounts falling due within one year
Enployes Benefit Trust ioan 900 -
Employes Berefir Trust overdraft - G977
Less pank “acility arrargeven: feeg {65) EEL
835 5938

The Employee Benefit Trust (“the EBT") has a bank loan of £0 9m (2017 overdraft facliy
£ 1y which 1s guarantead by the Company and repayable on demand The Group has a bane
overdraft facility of £2m and any overdrafts under this facitity are repayable on demand and
sacured by a fixed and fisaung charge over the undertaking, property, assets and rights of
certan companies in the Group, together with cross guarantees from certain companies
the Group.

The Group has a term revolving advances faclly expinng on 30 June 2022, The maximum
amourt available throughout the term of this faciity 15 £10m The undrawn committed
faciiities ava:iable at 31 December 2018, in respect of whicn all corditions precedent had been
me: at that date, were £12m (2017 £20m1. Prov ded that 1he Group continues 1o comply with
the conditions of the facl ty, the Group has the nghit to dravs dowen surrs up ta the amount of
the facility for periods endirg on or before the expiry date

Sums drawn down urder the revolving advances faclity are secured by a fixed and fioanng
cnarge over the undertaang, property, assets and rghts of certain companies 17 the Group,
together with cross guarantees from certain companies in the Group

www.archant.co.uk 41



ARCHANT ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018

21

PROVISIONS

The movements In prowsions are as follows:

severans: | Share-baser HNewvspaner Tatal

BHASGne Pty rent STy

Dersion

SCNEME

detcir
£009 £000 £000 £000 £000
4137 December 2016 345 206 237 | /6 358
Arsng aureg 258 50 708
Ll sed 102! 1200 - 52 1354
41 31 Decerrher 2077 501 - 187 124 212
Arsing durnng the year 2404 - i3 91 332
U hised AT - - 26) 73
At 31 December 2018 698 - 184 189 1,071
Analysis of total provisions 2018 2017
£000 £0G0
Jurrens 161 195
HNen-curens 910 vy
S0t 1,071 812

Property provisions are made in accordance weth independent orcfessiona: adwice for

provisions for dilapidations, of the ieases run to expiry, without earlier break clauses beng
exercised, or without the [eases being renewed for a further term, these oblhigations will mostly
be settled within five years, witn the remaining habilities due in various years uo to 2036

The prowvision for share-based payment comprses cash bonuses payable under the 1SOP
including associated national insurance, nlus national insurance on the cost of share options

granted under the 2011 LTIP

The Group committed to fund its share of the Newspaper Society Pension and Life Assurance
Scheree defiait prior to the incorporation of the Society m Apni 2014,
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22 DEFERRED TAX

Deferren tan s cacuiaizd r fuli o0 terrporary afiererges yader tne wab JSINg the tax rates 1hal gre

SUpECIEN 10 apiy woer ihe retatad asset $ real sed or habity 15 settied.

Analysis of amounts provided 2018 EiEy
£000 £000
Hor-c omer™ aste’s 9,239 9878
ton-ciran han, hiey {2,130} 2 5aE
Total 7,109 72

The movements on tne deferren 1ax account are as foflows.

Persion Ctiel lasses [Fevauat.om | itargbe ol
20T TAMTTTATY tir ng ang nan A far 455213
aiowanies | afrerencss | airfzramces frelatorse o Va3 e
defimtg

£800 £0C0 £C00 £030 £000 £05G £G00
At 1 january 2007 11y 5,435 204 3865 (1,589 CE4aT 4525
Cred ek arge o
Conscloaten noome
Statar e 423G 246 7 557 Elers 435 4347

Other corpreher s v

[
)

I

.
ca
M

'
[}
wr

INCCIYE .

A0 2T Decerper 2017 4,225 5,034 126 329 11,658 378 7,772
Credtickane to,

Corsohdateg mcome
staterment 432 125 3 1329,

T
&
L
o
[}
@O
50

Other conprahers ve
NCGTMe - BT - - 52 - (7ot

At 31 December 2018 4,761 4,349 129 - (1,601) (529) 7.109

Deferred tax assets not recognised as they do not satisty the recognition critena for deferred tax assets under
IAS 12

2018 207
£000 £500

Tax {osses arising 10 “ne UK of approsamate y £3 7000002877 £1,700,000Y that may
ne 3y a-skie for offset agamst future Lexao ¢ profts, 625 32t
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24

CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL

lssued ordic ary shares of 200 each:

2018 2007
ALY January 14,420,822 4,420,822
Shares ssuerd 2,500
AT 31 Docorber 14,423,322 14 4320,822
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 200 each,
2018 2077
£000 £000
At January 2,884 2,854
snares -saued 1
_At 31 Decerper 2,885 2,884

During 2018, 2,5C0 ordinery shares having a nominal vaiue of £500 were

aggregate consideration of £1,750

SHARE PREMIUM

55 .20 with an

2018 2077
£000 £0074
AT January 2,675 2,675
Shares 1ssued 1 -
4l 31 Decerrber 2,676 2,675
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25 OTHER RESERVES

Falr valua of bsteg anc
uristed :nvastments
Drsnosa (J': L‘Hii,‘)t-’:‘(;‘

I, @8t ments

Excrange o Foroncss on
“ranslar on ot foreign
oneratinns

Tanta |REvAlLator A ahs Con | TeraaTon Tota
reser 2 |37 g and Torias
TLononn Lnertrerts
£050 L0320 L0 G50 FCO0 o0 000
4+ 3° Dacerrbar 2075 5259 2833 z.708 23€ 5,084 Gd A=
Other comprehensive
income
Suronase o owm srares
ned by empioyes s - - - - 5 - 5
Sae 0’ own shares ned m
erpioyne rusts - - - B 14 B a1
Delt 1o 2quity for
shaie-hased payme - - - 19 - _ TG
Fealsed on disnasa of
fraehele property - 1,193 - 1,793
Tepreciat on tranzler for
freerold proverty - 12° - - - - ray
Fairwaue of I sed andg
L isted imvesieeents - - =R 3] - - - LG
Exchange differences on
crars.ation of tore g
LErALONS - - - - - 19 249
4t 3§ December 2077 5,36¢ 5,519 2917 117 L.07E /5t
Other comprehensive
income
Purcrasa of own snares
~eld by empoyes us's - - - - a - K
stare-nased pasmens - - - 71 . _ 71
o of freenc d
o1 . 7 - - a1
Realszg on dsposa of
freenn.d property - 127 - - - AN
won transer for
cid property - 120 - - - - (it

o

At 31 December 2018

5,369

5,328

4,052

96 (5,079) (8 9,685

-
e
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26

OTHER RESERVES continued

The capizal reserve comprises the balance of the share premium account in the forrrer halding
cuernpany on 1 Marc» 2002,

Cwsn shares held comprise shares held by the JSCP and the tristees of the EBT, the (TP Trust
and toe SIP Trust otnier than shares beirg heid as a bare trustee Gwn shares held comprised
676,964 shares wiih a nominal value of 20p eac, acquired at an average cost of £7 50 each
12017 &75.146 shargs at £7.52). Purchases o° s~ares I1n the Company by tre EBT have been
funded by a bank overdra®™ guaranteed oy the Company and purchases by the LTIP and SIP
have been ‘unded py cash contributions from the Cormpany and its subsidiaries. The trusts
provice sources of shares for use i connection with share schemes.

All expenses ircurred by the trusts are settled directly by the Comrpany, and chargec 1 the
financial statements as ncurred.

RETAINED EARNINGS

2018 2407

£000 £000
A1 7 i3nuary (1,606) R}
Otrer comprebensiug ~came Tor the year (3.247) 12732
Realised revaiuation stoplus on dsposal of freencld property 121 1,193
{Diaprac.ation transfer on freshold property 121 2
At 31 December {4.611) 1,606

The cumulative amount of goodwill writien off to retained earnings at 31 December 2018 in
the corsolidated financial staterments is £8,032,600 (2017 £8,032 0G0
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27 FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group” ab-' 1y to contirue

finarial assets rclude trade and other rece vabies ard cash a~d snhort-
5. The Group's prindipa finarcal e

bark borrowirgs.

‘Fe Grouz s onnc pal

term depos nrse traue and other payaniss arc

The Board retans respons bitty for the agreemert of the terms of any new or rerewsd
borrowing faclizes Surolus ‘uncs and borrowngs are manzged <entrally. and the Group's
reasury ohyect
short-term iquidsty requirements

se borrowing costs and maqdrise returas or funds, subject ©

Financial risk factors

Tha Grouss prncpa firanaal rsks are D guicity ris< and interast rate nisk. The Group has
imited exposure to foreign exchange rsk, credit nisk ard comrodity orice nis<. The Groups
Senior Management oversees the management of tness nsks wihin an overall risk strategy
which seeks 1o minimise potential adverse effects o the Group's performance.

Liquidity risk

Liguidiny sk resLits from Paving nsuff.cent inancal resources to meet day-to-tay fluctuations
roworking capita and cash flow Ultimate responsibiity “or lguedity sk management rasis
with the Board. The Group monitors roling forecasts of the Group's hguidity requ remrents 1o
ensure it nas sufficient cast and available porrowing facilities 1o meet operational needs. The
Groap may invest surplus caskh in money market deposits At 31 December 2018, the Group
had drdrawr term facities and overdrafts of £12m and the Group considers that it shoLid he
able 1o operate within the level of 1ts current Tac iities.

Interest rate risk
Utilseq ong-term borrowings ssued at vanable rates expose the Group 1o nterest rate risk
which 1s partially offset oy cash held at varable rates.

The Group manages its interest cost using a mix of fixed ana variable rate debts The Grouns
Revohing Credit Facility, overdraft faciity and EBT foan ali carry nterest at fixed margins over
bank base rate or LIBOR. Undrawsnn commitments under the Revolving Cradit Faclivy carry fixed
rates of interest

The Group's pank borrowing taciiities contain financial coverants based on cash flow cover,
interest cover and the ratio of debt to ad usted earnings befare interast, tax, deprecatior and
amortisation, Throughout the year tre Group mamtained adequate headroom against trese
covenants and s expacted 1o do so into the foreseeable fuiure,

Foreigh exchange risk

The Group has a subs diary undertaking in the United States of Amenca, whick s im-ted in
scale ana largely self-financrg. Therefore the Group has no foreige currency Horrowings 1o
hedge the foreign currency mvestment The Group has lim ted exposure 1o foreign exchange
risks with respect to fransactions :n US dollars and the Euro Due to the low exposare o
currarcy risk, the Group does not use forward exchange contracts.
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FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL RISK
MANAGEMENT continued

Credit risk

The Group has ¢ sigmdicant exposure to customer credit risk, guc 10 fransactions bemg
principaly ot a high vo.urne, fow value and short matur 1y, The Group nas impiemented polic es
that require, where aopropnate, credit checks on potental customers before sales commence

Cash at pank, including short-term bank depesits also give rise to credit risk or the arrounts
due from counterpartes. These risks are maraged by restr cting such transactions to approved
counterparties and designatung appropriate limits for each counterparty. The Group considers
that i1s maxirmum exposure to cradit risk 1s as foliows'

Notes 2018 2077

£000 £GOG

Trade ang other recevshes 17 12,316 12,344
Cash anrt cash aquivaens 12 3,724 5,009
16,040 22,073

Commodity price risk
The Group s affectea by the pnce voiatifity of nevisprnint ard paper which are raquired n ts
oneraung activities The Group has an agreerment 1o source most of 1ts newspriat from ¢ single

majcr supplier and negotiates prices for newspnrt at least six monihs in advance.
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28 CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

2018 20
figieT £000 £00.7

Loss before taxation
Frge & 0o9s
Frgoe mcome

Frar ~e axpenss on Scresré b antity

{7,606) 1334
2 286 273
! 1mn EX
32 699 963

Operating (loss)/profit

A Grlsalior oF ntocgit e Tred assels

impairmert oF ~langin'e T xed asiens

desited, crediedr o Imcome staterrent

Seearc-based payment

COCrease 1T MegLonos

Serease 1™ ade and oTher oayan e,

b e TRt s i[Oy 5 Ons

Cash cortr oulions to pensior schare

Deprec at on oF property, D a0t End egupent

Falr vawle/ae? ¢ 905 ol s o8 avaian e 7o sa e finarc 4- dsiels

Lowshoroiitian dsnasa - ot prapatty plact ard equannrert

suns diany, unaertakings ano urislec imvestmants

Degrease n *race and orrer ez vables

Fxcharge diffsrarces on ranc ation of fore gn orarat o0s (6) 25
Ponsion (osts charged agams? eperating orott 32 3,498 883

(6,632) 1202

13 1,937 2120
| 1,920 2,272

[APRE (N

2,887

]
L
(]

204 g

19 3,977
(23) 158
130 55

29 2735
{615) 3,275
171 109

32 {3,537 V3,063

Cash flow from operating activities

{(18) 855

29 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2018 2017
£000 £500

LORELTICT SIOUNLCE TG

Contracts entered Into, oo not provaad for, for proparty 0.ant anc

25 -
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31

COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING LEASES

The Group ieases varous properties and equ pment undar 7
agresments. The tote! future minnum rentals payable under non-canceiable opsrating leases
are as follows

canceilable operating ease

Lara and nu'dings Flant, equinmant ana ven C'es
2018 2007 2018 2007
£000 £000 £0006 2000
Oparatng 123565 W\ Mo exprre
Mo later than one year 647 773 795 265
Later than ors vear and na later than
fie years 1,467 1,800 602 975
Later than Tue years 934 1120 - R
3,048 3,683 1,397 1,940

The Group has sub-let two operating leases 12017 wwod and the future aggregate mimimym
sub-lease amcurts expected 1o be recaived amount 1o £36 000 (2017 £44,000:

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactics betwee the Company and wholly-owned subsidiary companies, or between
whol y-owned subsidiary companies, have been eiminated o consoiidat on and are ro:
disclosed . this Note

Transacugns with the Archan: Pension and Life Assurance Scherre and the Archant Pension
Plan are disciosed in Note 32

Key management compensation 15 disclosed in Note 5
The Group held a 16.67% equity holding m WiSpire Lirmited « "WiSgire™s, a prowder of ~igh-

speed broadband to raral communities in Morfolk, at fair value at 31 December 2017, This
equity holcing was sold durning 2018 at 15 recorded farr value.
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32 PENSION LIABILITY

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PROVISION
The Grous operates & cefinen tontrbutior pension screme, the Avonant Pension Plan e

CAPPT wicn g open to eligioie emipioyees
The Group cost of gefined cortnb Ltion pensons s disticsed -0 Note &

DEFINED BENEFIT PROVISION

Tre Group orovidec defired oenshit nensions trougn

he Arcrant Persion ano ife Assurance
Scheme ¢ 'the Scheme” The Scheme wv.as c'osed to new entrants 1 Fepruary 1998 anc o
future accrual o~ 31 May 2016

The Scheme assets arn
Jabities to nast and

e neld in a separate trustee-admiristerad fund to maet long-term pension
present errpoyees.

Contribution rates to the Scheme are calculated as a cercentage of pensionanle =arnirgs
cetermmined on the basis of the most recent actuanal wvaluation and w i e advice of
ndepencent actuaries, usitg the projected Lnit rnethed.

INSURANCE CONTRACT

in Decerrber 2015, the Trustee Conpany vveath support from the Cormpanys agreed to purcnase
an nsura~ge contract wh ch tock the form of a medicaily underwrtier bulk annuity poicy
coverng a predefined group of persaner members, selected as 12gse with annaal pension
arrounts over a nre-agreed lirr i,

This nvestment dacision was taken by the Trustee Company with a view ‘o reducing the
mfiation, interest rate and moriality risks within the Scheme,

BUY-IN CONTRACT

in Cecamber 2018, the Trusiee (with support from the Companyt agreed to nurchase z buy-
i contract with Just Retiremnent Limited coverng aporoximately one-third of the previously
uninsured pensioner members of the Scheme.

This investment decision was taken by the Trustee Company, following approprate advice,
with a viaw to reducing the inflation, interest rate and mortality rsks within the Scheme.

The purchase of the buy-in pol ¢y for £25 2m took place in Decermmber 2018, and was funded
from the Baring Diverssfied Growth Fund and the ) P PMorgen Diversified Crecit Fund.

Individuai pens oner's pensions are not atfected by this irvestment and the buy-in policy i3
treated as an asset of the Scheme

OTHER PENSION PROVISION

The Group aso pays ex gratia pensions on an unfunded basis 1o certam former employees
and ther dependents and, accordingly, provides for this habiity, calculated v accordance with
actuaral acvice, in the finanaal statements.

PENSION DISCLOSURE UNDER IAS 19

The following information for the Scheme is measared 10 accordance with 1AS 19, based on
the most recent actuanal valuation at 1 January 2017 " the Valuaton ), and has been updated
to 31 Decemnber 2018 by an incependent actuary.
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32 PENSION LIABILITY continued

The assets and liabilities of the Scheme at 31 December are:

2018 2007

£000 L0060
Frpusty mstrumerts 23,662 48673
Dabt nitrumens 33,876 42 780
Investment fords 45,501 57,529
Assets held by insurarce company 39,612 1Y, 398
Bank ann cash baarces 12,208 3,129
Fair value of the Scheme assets 154,859 169 149
oresent valte of funaed obl gatons 179,986 1898 280
Sresent value of untorded shugations 161 194
Total Scheme obligations 180,147 193 474
Scheme deficit 25,288 ] 29,025

Ihe urfunded obligations are i respect of the ex gratia pensions paid by the Group. The
present walug of tiese obligations has been calcuiated i accordarce with 185 19 by an
indenendent actuary.

Analysis of the movement in the balance sheet liability:

2018 2017

£000 £000
Cofior n e Suheme ot begning of vear (29,025) 137,327
Tota wecogrised o the Carschigated inceme statermnent (4,197 11,6520
cronloyer cortr butions 3,537 3,063
“olhal gains recogniset in eouty 4,397 £,831
Deficit in the Scheme at end of year (25,288) {29 G25)

The amounts recognised in the Consolidated income statement are as follows:

2018 2057

£000 £000
Currers service cost - 264
Adm.nisirative axpenses 374 419
Pas sery e o for Guarantees Mimrawm Pers ons equalisaton 3,025 -
Loss on seftlerments 99
Onorating capenses 3,498 283
frterest on funded obl gat ans 4,403 4858
Interest on Lnfurded ohigat ons 9 e
interest.ncome or (he Scheme assets (3,713) 3,905
Rinance axpense an the Scheme iane ty 699 369
"otal recognisea 0 the Consolidated noono siatement 4,197 teyz2
Aetaal returm on the Schemre asiets {3,210} w0261
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32

PENSION LIABILITY continued

Changes in the present value of the Scheme obligations are as follows:

2018
£000

O T
2807
£QG3

- Y T L <] o £y - ~En re gt z
Soer g Srheme L5ogatons - e o AT ons

Tperirg Scheve o3 gatons woturoed ok gations

198,280
194

Tota pen g Srare aivgatiar s

Cgrrsml serv 28 0050

Lastserase ot far Guaranteed Mnomus Pecsors en Lal sation
Oy G SO ThE ey

irrerest erepens2 - fundod ool gators

FerercsT oroens — gofungerd oblgatons

Zenedlt payments from pian assets

Sertlamant nayrmants fror [zlar assens

INSUTArCe nrerTiLms for Tisk benefis

Remreasuraments
tffect of chianges b serragraphic 2ssurmetions

“ffect of changes i f ranc.at assemphions

“fiec of experience adp.strents

198,474

3,025

29

4,403

9
{9,125}
{4,364)

{3.220)
{8,757)
669

o
CO
L

)]

o e
[T

M e
I

=tec of charges nofung vatues {1,024) 783
Ex gratia oenatl oaymrents (30) :37)
Ex gratla refneasurarnonts {(12) 125,
Closing Scheme gbhgstions 180,147 193,474

Closirg Schare ohigatnss
Forcec obl gauons

Jnturded ohiigatons

179,986
161

180,147

The funded obligations by participant status comprise:

2018
£000

Ceferad rembers

Pensioners

78,286
101,700

179,986
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32 PENSION LIABILITY continued

The benefis payab e by the Scheme are expecten to Increase steadily over the next 20 yaars
as active and deferred merebers reach ret rermen:. After that the Lercfits payanle should drog
off markedly as mortality rates icrease,

The expected benefits payments in the next ten years are:

£O50

Inreyears 2019 to 2073 25,942
I the years 2024 to 2028 38,446
74388

Changes in the fair value of the Scheme assets are as follows:

2018 2677

£000 €400

Spering fair value of the Scheme assets 169,449 172,523
Intergst incomia on the Scheme assets 3,713 3,905
COnTniano s By 2Inioye: 3,537 3063
Zerabt gayments from pia asset {9,125} V16 836

Settlerment payments from par ascets {4,364)

Ex gratla benelil payrers (30) 13T
Adp nistrat ve expenses dad from plan assets (374} 405
Insurance prem.ams for 7 sk benefits - 2643
Eect of changes i r.d values {1,024) 789
Rerseasarement - retur™ 20 plar assets excluding interest secome (6,923) 5,425
Closng far value of the Scheme assets 154,859 169,449
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32 PENS'ON LIABILITY continued

Assumptions

Re a0 3s5umipiions Lsed Dy the actaary 0 uncaung tne Varuator ror 1AS T3 were

2018 2007 |
%o =
Fate g’ nereasse « sala es 0.00 oo
2.14 20
2.98 249z
2.88 253
3.14 310

The current assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:

2018 2018 007 2007
Male Female Nlale Fe:r alo
Ratring toiay
hismber 21.9 24.0 215 245
Retrnain 25 y2ars
PAemner 23.2 25.2 242 262

Sensitivity analysis of the principal assumptions used to measure the
Scheme liabilities

The sensitivities regarding the principal essumptions used to measure the Schemre liabihties are
set out below.

Assumption

Change in assumption

Impact on Scheme liabilities

Discourt rate

Decrease v 3 0%

Fare of nfator ircrease by G 25% ircrease by 1 8%

Lo exuectaroy ~orease by 1oyear ingrease by 3 0%

Fodowirg tne Valuation, the Group has agreed with the Trusiee Directors to return the on-
gong funding level of the Scheme to 100% of the projected past service labilities wimin a
period of e'ever vears anc Sve months from the date of the Valuation and to maintain furding
at ieast at this ‘eve! once the funding level of the Scheme is 160% of the prosected past sarvice

Labiities. The Groun expects to contrioute approamately £3,500,000 o the Scheme n 7019
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Company financial statements

COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION for the year ended 31 December 2018

2018 2277
el £000 £330
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, 0iatt and eguiniret [ -
Jter fingn T3 3ssels [ 161,977 02,77
Cerarran faxar 07 o1 - 2
sregants od oy supsid 2y urgsrtaaras e 88,536 88.3/%
250,513 258154
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade ang oirer reCe a0 et 6 50 47
Zarrent tax recoveraby'e 597 Elsts)
Zashand casr anasents 7 8 50
655 A
TOTAL ASSETS 251,168 254627
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowe ngs and cuerora', 8 835 238
Defarred anat on e 2 -
Trade anrd ntrer payan es 79 248 347
1,085 1.28%
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Prow 51008 216 181 182
Amouris cwed 1o group andertawngs Ci2 216,029 217 855
216,210 218,037
TOTAL LIABILITIES 217,295 219,322
NET ASSETS 33,873 40,305
EQUITY
Cafed up srare capita i3 2,885 884
Skare preciuny arooust 14 2,676 2,675
Other reserves C15 {931) 22,27
Retsineq ear irgs C15 29,243 36,873
TOTAL EQUITY 33,873 43,305

S Bax BG McCarthy 28 february 2019
Chairman Finance Direcior
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY for the year ended 31 December 2018

Shae Share .n shares Agai by e fShare-based Relaimed Tetal
cantia- orert g hield for sal= cayer! earr ngs equity
Inves merits
£000 £004 £C00 £300 £000 £000 £000

A7 7 Jaruar, 2007 2,884 2,675 5,084 3241 23¢€ 40 381 44,233
Loss T the year - - 2208 3,208:
Farovalne of hstea anc
srlisted irvestmonts 607, - 1607}
et to equity for
share-based nayrents - - - - 119 (11,
Purchase of owe shares
he.d bv emoloyes trusts - - 18} - 181
Sale of it shiares heid
oy enigloyee trusts - - 14 - - - |
AT 37 Decernoer 2017 2,584 2,675 15,078 2,834 i 36,87z 23,205
Loss for the year - - - - - V7830 7830

- - 1,278 - 1,238
Deb:t fo ety for
share-basod oayments - - - 21 - 27
Purenase of owa shares
Aa by eminloyes trusts - - B
Issue of share Capitai 1 I - - - 2
At 31 December 2018 2,885 2,676 (5,079) 4,052 96 29,243 33,873
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018

&

2

3

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company’s accounting policies are the same as those set out in Note 1 of the Group finanaal
statements, except as noted below

Investrrents in subsidianes are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisiens for impairment. The
Company grants share-based payments 1o the employees of subsidiary companies. Each period the fair
value of the employee services received by the subsidiary as a capital contnibution from the Company 15
reflected as an addition to investments in subsidiaries.

Loans o other Group undertaiungs and all other receivables are initially recorded at fair value, which is
generally the proceeds advanced. They are then subsequently carried at amortised cost. The loans are
interest bearing and repayable on demand, subject to being given thrae calendar months’ notice.

Loans from other Group undertakings and all other payables are initially reccrded at fair value, which
is generally the proceeds received They are then subsequently carried at amortised cost. The loans are
Interest bearing and repayable on demand, subject to being given three calendar months’ notice.

The Compary’s finanaal risk is managed as part of the Group’s strategy and policies as discussed in Note
27 of the Group finandial statements.

In accordance with the exemption allowed by Section 408(3) of the Companies Act 2006, the Company
has not presentad 1ts own income staterment.

EMPLOYEES
Average monthly number of staff 2018 2017
Company 14 15
Fu o frre eguialents 13 1!

The average monthly number of staff shown above includes five {2017 five) nor-executive directors of
the Company.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Amounts paid by the Cempany in respect of services provided by the Group’s auditor are as follows:

2018 2017
£000 £C00

Auditer’s remuneration
Auit 36 39
Tax comolance 13 23

www.archant.co.uk 61



ARCHANT ANNUAL REPORT 20138

Company financial statements

NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018

C4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Plart and [SHE]
2. DMent
L300 £C0O0
Cost.
At 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 "2 12
Depreciation
At 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 "2 o2
Net book value
At 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 - -
C5 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Sulbssichary _ieten Jniisien Tota
unrfertacngs
£GO0 £600 £GO0 £000
Falr . alue/cost at 31 Decerrber 2076 74,392 G 3523 120924
Stamz-Dased uayment 39: - 139
Far value ad astmant - - auy GC7r
Falr vaefiost at 31 Deacerpher 2017 177353 = 2318 120278
Share-pased paymen: 15 - - s
D-sposal of shares - 3 3
Cap-tar reduct.on 19,000 - 9,000
Fa:rr value adiustmert - 5 V227 1,258
Fair value/cost at 31 December 2018 168,338 2 4,138 172,478
Froviscns
At 31 December 2016, 2017 and 2018 10,501 - - 10,501
Net book valus:
At 31 December 2018 157,837 2 4,138 161,977
At 31 December 2017 166,852 Pl 259156 169,777
At 31 December 2016 166,891 2 3523 170,423
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C6 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2018 2577
£0600 2565
Corent
Promay ™ enTs 47 ALCTLRG 1 IS 50 47
Mon current
A7 0noTs Wen b sulsaiary Loaertak nGs 88,536 38,375
C7 (CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2018 2017
£000 £005
Zase at bar<and © hand 8 44
C8 BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND FACILITIES
The bank loans, overdrafts and facilities comprise:
2018 2017
£000 £50G
Corrert
EBT l2ar/overaraf: 900 977
Less Dare fac ity arranaer-ent fees (65) 139
835 32

The Employee Benefit Trust (“the EBT") has a bank loan of £0.9m (2017 overdraft facility £1m) which
15 guaranteed by the Company and repayable on demand, The Group has a bank overdraft faciity of
£2m and any overdrafts under this facility are repayable on demand and secured by a fixed and floating
charge over the undertaking, property, assets and rights of certain companies in the Group, together
with cross guarantees from certain companies in the Group.

The Group has a term revolving advances facility expiring on 30 June 2022. The maximum amount
throughout the term of this facility 1s £10m. The undrawn committed facilities available at 31 December
2018, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met at that date, were £12m (2017: £20m).
Provided that the Group continues to comply with the conditions of the faality, the Group has the nght
to draw down sums up to the amount of the facility for periods ending on or tefore the expiry date.

Sums grawn down under the revalving advances facllity are secured by a fixed and floating charge over
the undertaking, property, assets and rights of certain comparnies in the Group, together with cross
guarantees from certain companies in the Group.
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C9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2018 207
£000 £000
Accraals ard deferred ircome 248 347
C10 PROVISIONS
The movements in provisions are as follows:

Naticral | Share-based Tota

INSUFARCE 06 DAVIeNT

share ontons

L0030 0G0 £000
At 31 December 201¢ 22 205 227
ATSING it 19 TR year T {34 (45:
Az 30 Deceroer 201/ 171 182
Arsing Gurng the yaar i - N
At 31 December 2013 10 171 181
2018 it
Analys 5 of tota: provis 018 £000 £000
NMaorn-gurrart 181 132

The prowision for share-based payment comprises cash bonuses payabie under the JSOP mncluding
associated national insurance, plus naticnal insurance on the cost of share options granted under the

2017 LTIP,

C11 DEFERRED TAX

The movements on the deferred tax account are as follows:

Accelerated | Cther unvag Lugtanle intal
capital dif‘erarces for sa2
allowances Nvestments
RS FGO0 £O00 £00;
A1 31 Decerrber 2016 1 74 2 23
Debited to the imcome statement - 127 - 21
At 31 Decermnber 2017 1 53 1521 2
Delntad o the mcome statemen: - 4y - 14
At 31 December 2018 1 49 (52) (2)
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NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2018

C12 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

2018 2017
£000 £007
STOUNTS Cwea e groun WnZErEy N3 216,029 277,855
Alf habilities falling due in more than one year mature between two and five years,
C13 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
Issued ordinary shares of 20p each:
2018 2007
At 1 Jangary 14,420,822 14,420,822
Shares niaed 2,500
At 3 Decemner 14,423,322 14,420,822
Issued and fully paid ordinary shares of 20p each:
2018 2017
£000 £000
At January 2,884 2,884
Shares 1ss.ec 1
AU ZE Decermoer 2,885 2,884

During 2018 2,500 ordinary shares having a nominal value of £500 were issued with an aggregate

consideration of £1,750.

C14 SHARE PREMIUM

2018 2017
£000 £0005
At 1 Januany 2,675 2,675
Shares ssusd 1
AT 31 December 2,676 2,675
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C15 OTHER RESERVES

Availahle Share-pased Crury shares Tty
‘or sae pavments Fold
T ESTITEN TS
£000 £005 £000 2000
At 31 December 20146 3,441 236 ‘5,084 AL
Dtrar comorahansie INcore
P.rchase 0f own shares peid oy emplovee trusls - - 8 ¥
Sate of own snaras Bela by employes frusts - - 14 14
Debit 1o equ ty for share-basea payment - HRACH - N
Farr va'ue OF sied ano urnsted innestrenrts 1607, - - KEIVES
At 31 December 2017 2,234 117 15078 12,127
Other corrprehersive income
Purckase nf own sirares beld oy aimpioy ee truss - - 1
Den:t lo equity {or share-based paymert - 21 - I
Fa-r waibe of hstad ard unisted nvestmonts 1,218 - - 1212
At 31 December 2018 4,052 96 (5.079) (931}

Own shares held comprise shares held by the JSOP and the wrustees of the EBT, the LTIP Trust and the SIP
Trust other than shares being held as a bare trustee. Own shares heid comprised 676,964 shares with a
nominal value of 20p each, acquired at an average cost of £7.50 each (2017: 675,146 shares at £7 52).
Purchases of shares in the Company by the EBT have been funded by a bank overdraft guaranteed by the
Company, and purchases by the LTIP and SIP have been funded by cash contributions from the Company
and its subsidiaries. The trusts provide sources of shares for use in connection with the SIP

All expenses incurred by the trusts are settled directly by the Company, and charged in the financial
statements as incurred.

C16 RETAINED EARNINGS

2018 2007
£000 £000
A1 Janary 36,873 40,081
033 Trom INCome staterren (7,630} 13,202
At 31 Dacamber 29,243 36,873
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GivEN maT the Anaug Generat iy
Rouen Road, fvorw o0 NRT IRE

[

TOHGAVIRG TESCHUTONS

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
1 THAT the recorts of the direciors ard audrors and the audited financa staterments for 1ne year endad 31
December 2018 pe anc are nieredy rece ver

2 THAT Mr B HIL, retiring as a director at thes meeling, De re-siectea a3 a diector of tne Company

3 THAT Mr B McCartiry, retir g as a cirector at this meeting, be re-elected as & director of the Campany.

4

4 ThAT Ernst & Young LLP be re-appointed as auditors for e Company at a fee o be fixed oy the directors.

BY ORDER GF THE BOARD
B G McCarthy

Drrecior

27 Fepruary 2016

Archant Limited, Prospect House, Rouen Road, Norwich NR1 1RE
Tetephone 01603 772772

Facsimite: 01603 613276

Emall company.secretary@archant.co.uk

Registereq number 4126597

NOTES

1 Memuers are entitled to appoint a proxy to exerdise ail or ary of thewr rights to attend and to sneak a~d vote
on thair peha f at the Annual General Meeting 1 "AGM ;. A sharehoider may appoint more than ong proxy
i refation 1o the AGR] provided that each proxy -5 appointed to exercise the rights attached o a d fferent
share or shares heid by that shareholder, A proxy ~eec not be a shareholder of the Company. A praxy form
v.ich may be used to rmake such appointment and give praxy instructions accompanses this notice. If you
do rot have a proxy form and believe that you should have one, or if you require additonal fornns, please
contact the Deputy Company Secretary on 01603 772802,

7 To be vahd any proxy form or other mstrument appointing a proxy must ge recemed by post or (during
normal business ~ours anlvs by hand at Equirst Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Road, 1arcing, West Sussex
BM99 6D A no fater thar 11.00 am on Tuesday 30 April 2019,

3 T return of 4 completed praxy form will not prevent a shareholder atiending the AGM and votng n
person shouid they wish o do so

4 To be entitled 1o attenc and vorte at the AGIM (and for the purpese of the determianor by the Comnany
of the votes they may casiy, shareholders nust be reqistered in the register of members of the Company
at 6 30pm on Tuesday 30 Apnl 2019 for, in <he svert of any adjournment, at 6.30pm or the date which s
two days befere the ume of the adjourned meeting:. Changes to the register of members after the relevant
deadline shali be disregargea ,n determiring the rghts of a~y person to attera ang vote at the AGNM.
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USEFUL INFORMATION FOR SHAREHOLDERS

SHAREHOLDER WEBSITE
Sharehoiders can fnd tre latest Annla Reporl, oreserntators o7 the pTevicus A la
usefal shareholder ~formator such as the mast

™3y DE QT terest as wevasarchiart ook Please mote the srarero:der reterence »umpar

art C'es A

PR reT A

Arnnual Pepor

REGISTRARS

Shareholders with auestiors regarding trer sharehald ng s~ould contact the Comoany's recsstrars.

Eguinitl L mated

Asnect House

Soencer Road

Lancing

BMN99 60A

Ui 0371 334 2641
Overseas: +44 121 415 7047

L rigs are ooen from 8.30am to 5.20pm (UK smes Monday 1o Fricay fexciuding sublic hoidays it England and
Waies:,

Shareholders are also ab.e to manage the r shareholding oniine ircluding: wewing shareholdings, setting up
paner-‘ree share communications and updaing records for changes In narre or address through Equinitis
wabsite Sharaviawv vy snareview co Uk Please note the sherehoider reference number will be requred
which can be found on the re evant chare certficate or on the Chairman's Lelter accompanying thes Arnga
Report,

SHARE DEALING AND SHARE PRICE
Sharehoiders can buy or sell Archani shares oy contacting the Company’s stockorokers Games Snarp & Coron
0161 764 4043,

CONTACT ARCHANT
ffyou wish to talk to somebody at Archant with regards to your shareholding or any other share related matiers
please contact the Deputy Comparny Secretacy on G16303 772802 or email company secretary@archant.co ux.
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